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TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

T % CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

| am pleased to present the annual report of Tysan Holdings limited (the
"Company”) together with ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2016. For the year under review, the Group achieved a profit
attributable fo equity holders of the Company of HK$397 million, equivalent
to HK$0.45 per share, representing 1% decrease over the same period last
year (2014/15: HK$399 million, equivalent to HK$0.46 per share) while
furnover decreased by 16% to HK$4,057 million (2014/15: HK$4,836

million).

DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has resolved not to
recommend any final dividend (year ended 31 March 2015: HK$0.15 per
share). An interim dividend of HK$0.20 per share was declared for the six
months ended 30 September 2015 (period ended 30 September 2014:
HK$0.05 per share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong Market
Foundation Piling

Tumover of the Group's foundation division decreased by 20% to HK$3,018
million for the year under review. Its net contribution increased by 22%
to HK$394 million as compared to HK$321 million last year, driven by
increased consfruction activities and public spending on infrastructure. The
Group's major confracts on hand include, inter alia, the Passenger Clearance
Building for the HK-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, public housing developments in
Pak Tin Estates and Wong Tai Sin, private residential developments in Tseung
Kwan O and North Point, and commercial developments in Wong Chuk
Hang, Kwun Tong, Pak Shek Kok and Yuen long. EBITDA for the foundation
piling segment increased by 19%, from HK$381 million to HK$455 million
for the year under review. The overall EBITDA margin for the segment
increased by 5% to 15% for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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3 W 5 CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PRC Market
Property Development
The Waterfront

During the year under review, the Group's residential project in Shanghai,
The Waterfront, recognised a revenue of HK$466 million as compared to

HK$569 million in the same period last year and contribution to profit of
HK$302 million (2015: HK$414 million).
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The unsold area of The Waterfront as at 31 March 2016 is outlined below:

*  Residential: about 1,000 sqm;

*  CarPark: about 31 car park units;

e NonResidential: about 4,800 sqm, representing primarily street front
refail shops and a historic building.

At the end of March 2016, the Shanghai Government issued tightening
policies fo cool the overheated property market, including raising the minimum
down-payment for the second home purchase with unit size below 140
square meters and fightening the qualifications threshold for nondocal buyers
fo purchase home. The residential market remains stable after the infroduction
of these tightening policies. With a relatively small inventory in an unique
development, we do not expect these Government policies would fo be an
additional significant challenge.

% 2015/2016 3
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The Riverside

The Group's residential project in Tianjin, The Riverside, comprises & towers
with a total gross floor area [“GFA") of about 75,000 sqm.

For the year under review, a revenue of HK$488 million was recognised as
compared to HK$418 million in the same period last year and contribution fo
profit increased from HK$ 166 million of last year to HK$228 million.

The unsold area of The Riverside as at 31 March 2016 is outlined below:

*  Residential: about 7,600 sqm;

o Car Park: about 164 car park units;

o Non-Residential: about 3,900 sqm, representing primarily street front
refail shops and The Riverside’s clubhouse.

The market sentiment of the high-end market in Tianjin was positive in the
beginning of 2016. Buyers' confidence was strong due to the supportive
policies rolled out by the Central Government for the real estate market. The
rising demand for the firsHime home buyers and upgraders helped to maintain
a positive market senfiment in the first quarter of 2016.
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The Pinnacle

The site in Shenyang is located at Huanggu District with a site area of about
41,209 sqm and a GFA of about 165,000 sgqm. The Pinnacle comprises
both residential and commercial development. Pre-sale of the residential units
started in the second half of 2015 and construction works are expected to be
completed around mid 2016. The first batch of the sold units is expected fo
be handed over starfing from September 2016.

The unsold area of The Pinnacle as at 31 March 2016 is outlined below:

o Residential: About 96,200 sqm;

e CarPark: About 1,049 car park units;

e Non-Residential: About 62,665 sqm, representing primarily street front
retail shops, The Pinnacle's clubhouse, and a commercial building with
a podium.

ZEMZERE The Pinnacle

## 2015/2016 '~ §
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ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

EBITDA for the property development segment decreased by 12%, from
HK$603 million to HK$528 million for the year under review. The overall
EBITDA margin decreased by 6% to 55% for the year ended 31 March
2016.

The confidence of the buyers was strengthened by the positive senfiment of the
new home market across the country and supportive policies for the housing
market. The Shenyang Government rolled out a series of supportive policies
at the end of March 2016 to stimulate the demand for new homes, such
as relaxation of using housing provident fund for home purchase, reduction
of deed tax and provision of subsidies to the current students of universities
and secondary vocational schools as well as the fresh graduates for home
purchase.

Property Investment and Management

The Group has realized some of ifs invesiment properties and tumover of the
property investment division increased from HK$13 million of last year to
HK$26 million during the year under review. Disposal of the service apartment
business at Aidu Apartment and China Garden in Shanghai were complefed
in December 2015 and in February 2016 respectively.
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F % W 4 CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PROSPECTS

The Board notes that, in the joint announcement dated 19 April 2016
(“Joint Announcement”), HNA Finance | Co., lid. ("HNA Finance 1) and
the Company jointly announced that HNA Finance | has entered info an
agreement with Tides Holdings Il Lid. to acquire approximately 66% of the
issued shares of the Company (“Tides Transaction”). It was stated in the Joint
Announcement that upon completion of the Tides Transaction, HNA Finance
| will become the controlling shareholder of the Company. It was also stated
that HNA Finance | intends that the Group will confinue with the Group's
existing businesses and that subject to market conditions, HNA Finance |
also intends fo provide funds, personnel, technology and other resources fo
support the Group's investment in and development of new projects, and raise
the number of projects, asset value and brand recognition to a higher level,
including by actively seeking potential business investment and development
projects in the PRC and overseas. HNA Finance | also stated that it has no
infention fo terminate any employment of the employees of the Group or to
make significant changes o any employment. For further details, please refer
fo the Joint Announcement, the announcements and/or joint announcements
(collectively, the “Announcements”) of the Company to be made following
completion of the Tides Transaction, and the composite offer document relating
to the mandatory unconditional cash offer to be made by HNA Finance |
("Composite Offer Document”) to be despatched within 7 days from the
completion of the Tides Transaction.

With the recent decision by the United Kingdom to exit European Union
("Brexit’], the Group does not expect there is any immediate impact on ifs
operations, but it will review the effect of the “Brexit” closely.

The Group will maintain a prudent investment and financing sfrategy and
continue to strengthen its efficiency and seek opportunities to maximize the
interests of its shareholders.

£ 2015/2016
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group continues to adopt a prudent financing policy and sustain a sound
capital structure with healthy cashflow. As at 31 March 2016, the Group's
cash on hand was approximately HK$ 1,806 million (31 March 2015:
HK$1,311 million) while total assets and net assets (after deducting non-
controlling interests) were approximately HK$5,608 million (31 March 2015:
HK$5,568 million) and HK$2,688 million (31 March 2015 HK$2,742
million), respectively. As at 31 March 2016, the Group's working capital
amounted to HK$3,013 million. As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not
have any net debt and recorded a net cash balance of HK$949 million,
while the Group recorded a net cash balance HK$944 million as at 31
March 2015. Contingent liabilities in relation to guarantees of performance
bonds decreased from HK$417 million as at 31 March 2015 to HK$195
million as at 31 March 2016 while guarantees for end user mortgage
loans amounted to HK$ 14 million. Certain of the Group's assets with a
book value of approximately HK$175 million have been pledged to secure
certain banking facilities of the Group. The Group's bank borrowings were
primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars, with a few loan facilities in
Euro. Currency exposure has been monitored and forward confracts will be
considered as required.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC,
employed approximately 1,348 employees as at 31 March 2016. The
Group's remuneration policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary
levels and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Fringe benefits include provident fund, medical insurance and
fraining. In addifion, share opfions may also be granted in accordance to the
terms of the Group's approved share option scheme.
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ACQUISITION OF CONTROLLING INTEREST AND
MANDATORY UNCONDITIONAL CASH OFFER

The Company has been informed that HNA Finance | infends to complete
the Tides Transaction on 30 June 2016. Upon completion of the Tides
Transaction, HNA Finance | will become the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

Pursuant fo Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers,
following the completion of the Tides Transaction, HNA Finance | will be
required fo make a mandatory unconditional general offer in cash for all the
issued shares of the Company other than those already owned or agreed to
be acquired by HNA Finance | and ifs concert parties upon completion of
the Tides Transaction. For defails, please refer to the Joint Announcement, the
Announcements and the Composite Offer Document.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to express my sincere gratitude to
all of our staff for their dedication, hard work and confribution during the year
and fo thank all our shareholders for their support.

On behalf of the Board

WANG TIANBING
Chairman

Hong Kong

29 June 2016

4 2015/2016
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak Victor, aged 61, joined the Group in May 1994.
Mr. Fung is the Vice Chairman & Managing Director of the Board of the
Company, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
and also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for business development, strategic planning as well as general
and project management of the Group. Mr. Fung has over 37 years'
experience in the field of consulting engineering, construction management
and property development.

Mr. CHIU Chin Hung, aged 63, joined the Group in July 1994. Mr. Chiu
is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the
business development and management of the Group's Foundation Division.
Mr. Chiu graduated from The University of Aberdeen, Scotland and has
over 38 years' experience in foundation design and construction works and
is a Fellow Member of The Insfitute of Civil Engineers and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers as well as a Chartered Engineer. Mr. Chiu has been
a Council Member of The Hong Kong Construction Association representing
Tysan Foundation Limited since 2001.

Mr. LAU Kin Fai, aged 55, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. Lau is an
Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is the General Manager of the China
Division in charge of the Group's Property Development Division in the PRC.
Mr. Lau is primarily responsible for business development and management
of the Group's property development business. Prior to joining the Group, he
has over 24 years' experience in the field of quantity surveying and housing
development with the latter 14 years working in the Hong Kong Housing
Society. Mr. lau is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Insfitufe of Surveyors
and the Royal Insfitution of Chartered Surveyors.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WANG Tianbing, aged 48, was appointed as Chairman of the
Company, a Non-executive Director and as Chairman of the Nomination
Committee in April 2014 and a member of the Remuneration Committee
with effect from 1 July 2014. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Company. He is a Managing Director and Head of Real Estate China
in the Real Estate group of The Blackstone Group L.P. (“Blackstone”). Since
joining Blackstone in 2010, Mr. Wang has involved in evaluating real
estate investments in China and managing the Greater China portfolio. Mr.
Wang led the inifiation, sale and restructuring of some of the key investments
in China. Mr. Wang holds a Master Degree in International Business from
Curtin University of Technology, Australia. He also has a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from Zhejiang University, China. Mr. Wang serves as a Deputy
Chairman of SCPG Group. Mr. Wang is also a member of the ICSC China
leadership board.

Mr. Stuart Morrison GRANT, aged 48, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director in April 2014. He is a Senior Managing Director and Head of Real
Estate Asset Management for Asia of Blackstone. Mr. Grant has day-o-day
asset management responsibility for Blackstone's Asia assefs as well as the
MB Asia Real Estate Fund. Mr. Grant holds o Bachelor of Science [Honours)
degree from the University of St. Andrews and a Master of Science degree
from New York University, USA.

Mr. Justin WAI, aged 32, was appointed as a Non-executive Director in
April 2014. He is also a director of Tysan Foundation {Hong Kong) Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company. He is a Principal in the Real Estate group of
Blacksfone. Since joining Blackstone in 2007, Mr. Wai has primarily involved
in real estate investments in Greater China. Prior 1o joining Blackstone, Mr.
Wai worked at Macquarie Bank in Hong Kong. Mr. Wai holds a Bachelor
of Science Degree from the School of Hotel Administration, Cornell University,

New York, USA.

Mr. LAW Yiu Fat Richard, aged 35 was appointed as a Non-executive
Director in April 2014. He is also a director of Tysan Foundation [Hong
Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. He is a Principal in the Real
Estate group of Blacksfone. Since joining Blackstone in 2008, Mr. law has
worked in Blackstone's Hong Kong and New York offices and was involved
in evaluating investment opportunities in Greater China and the US. Before
joining Blackstone, Mr. law worked at the Bank of America Merrill Lynch
in Hong Kong. Mr. law holds a Masfer Degree at Stanford University and
a Bachelor Degree (graduated magna cum laude) from the University of
Michigan, Ann Arbor, USA.

£ 2015/2016
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FAN Chor Ho, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 74, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August 1993. Mr. Fan
currently also acts as the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He
was a Non-executive Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
from 3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a member of the Advisory
Committee fo the Securifies and Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and
again serving in the same capacity since 2001 until 2007. He was holding
appointments on Government boards and committees, including Chairman of
the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong from 13 September 2005 to 12
September 2011. He was awarded the Badge of Honour in 1991 and was
made a Justice of the Peace in 1993, and was awarded Bronze Bauhinia
Star in July 2005 and the Silver Bauhinia Star in July 2011,

Mr. TSE Man Bun, aged 73 was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr. Tse currently also
acts as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Commitiee of the Company. He is presently
an Independent Non-executive Director of HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited,
HSBC Life (International) Limited, Crystal International Limited, and China
Fishery Group Limited (listed on the Singapore Exchange limited). Mr. Tse has
over 40 years” working experience in the banking indusiry. He joined The
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in 1968 and retired from
the bank in December 2002. During his service with HSBC, he was assigned
many key positions, including Senior Credit Manager; Managing Director,
Wayfoong Finance Llimited and Wayfoong Credit Limited; and Senior
Executive, Commercial Banking. Apart from the banking field, Mr. Tse is well
versed in the reviewing and analysis of corporate financial statements and has
an indepth understanding of the commerce and manufacturing industries.
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Mr. LUNG Chee Ming George, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-execufive Director of the Company in August 2007. Mr. Lung currently
also acts as a member of the Audit Commitiee and the Nomination Commitiee
of the Company. He is an Executive Regional Director of Manulife (Infernational)
limited leading a team of around 1,000 insurance/financial advisers. He
first joined Manulife in 1990 and has since achieved outstanding results.
Actively involved in community services, Mr. lung was amongsf one of the Ten
Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1995 and was the chairman of
The Outstanding Young Persons Association in 2003 to 2004. Mr. lung was
awarded the Medal of Honour and Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2001 and 2014. Furthermore,
Mr. Lung is @ Commitiee Member of the Board of Govemnors of Hong Kong
Shue Yan University, a Member of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear
Power Station/lingao Nuclear Power Station, Nuclear Safety Consultative
Committee, the Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Youth Exchange Promotion
United Associafion and a Chairperson of “Passing on the Torch” National
Education Activity Series of Education Bureau. Mr. Lung is currently a member
of the National Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative
Conference and Justice of the Peace of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. He is also an Non-executive Director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong limited.

Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent Non-execufive
Director of the Company in March 2013. Mr. Li currently acts as a member
of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committlee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Social Sciences
from the University of Hong Kong. He has over 33 years of experience in
audifing, accounting and secretarial services and is a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He is a managing director of Arthur Li, Yau
& lee C.P.A. limited, and also a managing director of Cheong Yip Corporate
Services Limited which is principally engaged in corporate service related
business. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Henry Group
Holdings Limited and National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited,
which are companies listed on the Main Board and the Growth Enferprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited respectively.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Miss MO Wai Ling, aged 52, joined the Group in February 2008. As the
Financial Controller of the Group, Miss Mo is primarily responsible for finance
and accounting matters. She has over 29 years' experience in the finance and
accounting field. Miss Mo is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. WONG Kay, aged 53, rejoined the Group in January 2014. Mr.
Wong is the General Manager in charge of the Group's Shenyang Property
Development Division in the PRC. He is primarily responsible for organizing
and managing the operations of the Group's Shenyang property development
business in the PRC. Mr. Wong has over 30 years' experience in the
construction indusiry with more than 22 vears in property development and
project management in the PRC.

Mr. LAl Kok Wai, aged 58, joined the Group in July 1994. As a Director
of Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited, Tysan Foundation Limited, Tysan
Foundation Geotechnical Limited, Tysan Contractors (Hong Kong) Limited
and Tysan Construction (Macau) Limited. Mr. Lai is responsible for the
planning, coordinating and controlling of the technical operations and
administration of the Foundation Division. He has over 35 years’ experience
in civil engineering, building and foundation design and consfruction works
and is @ member of both The Hong Kong Insfitution of Engineers (MHKIE)
and The Institution of Civil Engineers United Kingdom (MICE). Mr. Lai also
represents Tysan Foundation Limited fo sit in various Government's panels
and committees. Mr. Lai is also a Director of Proficiency Engineering Limited
and Proficiency Equipment Limited. He is also responsible for the business
development and management of machinery leasing and frading.

Miss WONG Suk Han Kitty, aged 52, joined the Group in June 2007. As
the Company Secrefary of the Group and Director of Corporate Affairs, Miss
Wong is primarily responsible for company secrefarial matters, legal, human
resources and administration, and investor relations matters. She has over 19
years of experience in the corporate finance and legal fields. Miss Wong is a
Solicitor qualified in Hong Kong and has been admitted as a Solicitor of the
Supreme Court in England and Wales.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance and

has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited
the “Stock Exchange”). For the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the
Company has fully complied with the CG Code save as disclosed in sectfions

(B] and (F) below.

(A

(B)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company [the “Board” and the “Directors”
respectively] oversees the management, business, strategic directions
and financial performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
the "Group”). It has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company [“Senior
Management’) who perform their duties under the leadership of the
managing director of the Company (‘Managing Director”]. At the time
of delegation, the Board gives clear directions o Executive Directors as
to the matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions can
be made on behalf of the Group. The functions reserved fo the Board
and delegated to the Executive Directors and Senior Management
are reviewed by the Board to ensure that such delegation remains
appropriafe fo the needs of the Group. The management has ensured
sufficient explanation and information were provided fo the Board
fo enable it to make an informed assessment of financial and other
information put before it for approval. The Board members have access
fo appropriate business documents and information about the Group on
a timely basis.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises a fofal of 11 Directors, with three Executive
Directors, being Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung
and Mr. Lau Kin Fai; four Non-executive Directors, being Mr. Wang
Tianbing, Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr. Justin Wai and Mr. Law
Yiu Fat Richard; and four Independent Non-executive Directors, being
Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George
and Mr. Li Kit Chee. The Board comprises Direcfors with diverse
backgrounds and/or extensive expertise in the Group's business. The
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Direcfors have
a wide range of business and financial experience. The Independent
Non-executive Directors represent one-hird of the Board who consistently
exercise independent judgment. With a balanced composition of
Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), there is a sfrong independent element on the
Board. The balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of
the Board confribute to the effective direction of the Company.

£ 2015/2016
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(C)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has
fully complied with Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the number of Independent Non-executive Directors and the requirement
that at least one of these Directors must have appropriate professional
qualifications.

The Company has received annual written confirmations of
independence from all the Independent Non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the
view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in character and judgement and that they all meet the specific
independence criferia as required by the Listing Rules.

Mr. Yang Han Hsiang resigned as a Non-executive Director with effect
from 17 February 2016. An updated list of Directors identifying their
roles and functions and whether they are Executive Directors, Non-
executive Directors or Independent Non-executive Directors has been
maintained on www.tysan.com (the “Company’s website”] and www.
hkexnews.hk [the “Stock Exchange's website”).

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

There is a clear division on the roles of chairman of the Board (the
"Chairman”) and Managing Director which are performed by different
individuals. This ensures a balanced distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Wang Tianbing, the Chairman, provides leadership to the
Board and is responsible for the formation of the Group's strategies,
overall policy making, and direction of its business development. He
is responsible for leadership and effective running of the Board and
ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and where
required, resolved by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for the following matters:-

(1) to ensure good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established;

(2) to ensure that appropriate steps are taken fo provide
effective communication with shareholder(s| of the Company

|“Shareholderls)");

(3] to encourage all Directors to make a full and active contribution
to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in the
best inferests of the Company, encourage Directors with different
views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for discussion
of issues and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board

consensus,;
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(4)  to promote a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring consfructive relations between Executive and Non-
executive Directors; and

(5] to hold meetings at least annually with the Non-executive
Directors (including independent Non-executive Directors] without
the Executive Directors present.

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, the Vice Chairman and Managing
Director, is responsible for business development, strategic planning
as well as general and project management of the Group. He is
responsible for implementing the Group's strategy to achieve business
obijectives with the assistance of other Executive Directors and Senior
Management.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

The Board meets af least four times a year af approximately quarterly
intervals and additional meetings will be held as and when required.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Board held
b meetings [save for the executive Board meetings held between
the Executive Directors during the normal course of business of the
Company). Attendance by a Director at a meefing by means of a
conference telephone or other communications equipment is allowed
under the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws").

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secrefary”)
assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting agenda and each
Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda. A notice of
at least 14 days is given to all Directors for regular Board meetings.
Relevant information is circulated to all Directors normally three days in
advance of the regular Board meetings to enable the Board fo make
informed decisions and perform their duties and responsibilities.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings, and that they receive in a timely manner, adequate
information which are accurate, clear, complete and reliable to assist
them to make informed decisions and discharge their duties as Directors.
The Board members have separate and independent access to the
Senior Management whenever necessary. Upon reasonable request, the
Directors and Board committees will also have access to independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's
expense. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
Board members and Senior Management, and the Company reviews
the coverage on an annual basis or as appropriate.

£ 2015/2016
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Meeting minutes of the Board and Board committees are recorded
in appropriate details and draft minufes are circulated fo respective
members for comments before being approved by the Board and Board
committees. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary, or the
secretary of the Board committees, as the case may be, and are open
for inspection by the Direcfors.

According fo the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, any material transaction
that involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder(s) or a
Director(s) will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meefing. The inferested Director(s) shall abstain from
voting and shall not be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
fransactions in which such Director(s) or any of his/their associates has/
have a material interest.

The Company provides Board members with monthly management
reports which confain changes and developments of the Group's
business and helps Board members to make informed decisions and
discharge their duties and responsibilities as Board members.

The attendance of each Board member for the board meefings and the
general meetings held during the year under review is as follows:-

REBEE
2£ER REHEXR
SERLEER Annual
Board General
Meeting Meeting
EEnE Name of Directors Attendance Attendance
HiTEE Executive Directors
BEER S Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
BT E FAATIE) {Vice Chairman & Managing Director) 6/6 1/1
HRBLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung 6/6 1/1
2l Mr. Lau Kin Fai 6/6 1/1
HHITEE Non-executive Directors
FRESSE Mr. Wang Tianbing
(£fE) (Chairman) 4/6 1/1
Stuart Morrison Grant 54 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant 4/6 0/1
EE2b e o Mr. Yang Han Hsiang* 4/5 0/1
EIENELAE Mr. Justin Wai 6/6 1/1
BRI Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard 5/6 1/1
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
Bl E Mr. Fan Chor Ho 5/6 1/1
S L Mr. Tse Man Bun 6/6 0/1
EFALE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 5/6 1/1
TR M. Li Kit Chee 6/6 1/1
* BEE—Z—"F-A+tBEREN H Resignation effective from 17 February 2016

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Board members are encouraged fo attend fraining courses relevant
on changes and developments to the Group's business and to the
legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group operates at
the Company's expenses.

During the year under review, Board members have participated in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as listed company directors, and provided
the Company with their records of the training received for the year
which comprised attending seminars and talks, and reading legal and
regulatory updates and other reference materials. A summary of the
records of their fraining is as follows:-

HEREERE A

ith ] V-

IES=P

MEBBRERG  Attending trainings/
MEFME  briefings/seminars/

Reading Regulatory  conference relevant

EEnE Name of Directors Updates  to Directors’ duties
HITEF Executive Directors
RS E Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
(GBI E/EF#EFLLCIE) (Vice Chairman & Managing Director) V \
HEBTE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung y N
£l S Mr. lau Kin Fai v v
FHITEF Non-executive Directors
FRERAE Mr. Wang Tianbing y V
(&) (Chairman)
Stuart Morrison Grant 9t 4 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant y V
BRATE Mr. Yang Han Hsiang* y V
ZIEWE L Mr. Justin Wai v v
FERREST A Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard N \
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
SefERE Mr. Fan Chor Ho y N
XMW E Mr. Tse Man Bun V \
EFHRLLE Mr. Llung Chee Ming, George y v
2L Mr. Li Kit Chee y \
e IR —ANE_A+t+HABRER * Resignation effective from 17 February 2016
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(F)

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for the appointment and removal of Directors. The Nomination
Committee led by a Non-executive Director and comprising a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors, plays an important role to
identify and nominate suitable candidates for the Board's consideration
as additional Directors or to fill in casual vacancies on the Board and
making recommendations fo the shareholders for nomination of Directors
for re-election at general meetings. According fo the Byelaws, all
Direcfors newly appointed fo fill a casual vacancy are subject fo election
at the next following general meeting following their appointment.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has
complied with the CG Code save for the following deviations.

According tfo the Byelaws, one+hird of the Directors shall refire from
office by rofation at each annual general meefing, provided that
notwithstanding anything therein, the Chairman or the Managing
Directfor shall not be subject to refirement by rotation or be taken into
account in defermining the number of Directors to refire. As continuity is
a key factor fo the successful long term implementation of business plans,
the Board believes that the roles of the Chairman and the Managing
Direcfor provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allow effective planning and execution of longterm business strategies.
As such, the Board is of the view that the Chairman and the Managing
Director should not be subject fo refirement by rotafion.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Direcfors are
not appointed for a specific ferm but are subject fo refirement by rofation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Byelaws. As such, the Board is of the view that Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Direcfors do not have to be appointed
for a specific term.



(©)

S BT N TEE RN
Fo MW ALDIRE RIS
3I3EHBEBUM - ABH AN
EERRREHNFEBTLR  REH
MBS EN TENENERAL B
T HREREBEADNELEY
FTEEANE - BB RE S
AHYE - EEBRAES L EERRE
By RREEREERE A BT
FRITEENHE  MESSBERA
EHRYEBT SR EAYE - B
RPRAEENEENENERE - HIIR
REBTY  URAREERAEER
T B A RSB R A E AN 48
B - I BEAN T RERABBIE
ERER - 5h - BB LTRA B
URNTEEAMBENE K4
FHR AR IE T AR -

BN T EERBFAS LESLBER
EENES(ERELL AL
REGz L) ML NBEREFEENE
AEMRITZIRRBFAGNBE ZH

ESZEE

EERRARRESERAE T~
FZ A=+ RUEMRERHBEEY
BfF -

BUEFATREEREEZEML A
RASBHEETN  EBEHRE
R WERHETRYE  BERE AN
AEBREBRROKEMNSETE © 3k
REZEEHERE2EMEAZ ABE
NRAARB I EZBREERESLZR
fE o

(C)

R B R AR A

£ X% M % CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Mr. Tse Man Bun has served as an Independent Non-Executive
Director for more than nine years. In addition to his confirmation of
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Tse has confirmed fo the Board that in determining his independence,
he has considered his scope of work in the past years, which is
independent from that of the Company, and that his independence has
not been adversely affected by the fact that he has served the Company
for more than nine years as an Independent Non-executive Director. The
Board agrees that Mr. Tse has been demonsirating the aftributes of an
Independent Non-Executive Director by providing independent views
and advice and that there is no evidence that his tenure has had any
impact of his independence. The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Tse
remains independent notwithstanding the length of his service and that
his valuable knowledge and experience in the Group's business and his
external experience will continue to generate significant confribution fo
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. Further, under the listing
Rules, if an Independent Non-Executive Director serves more than nine
years, his further appointment should be subject fo a separate resolution
fo be approved by the Shareholders.

The names and biographical details of the Directors, Mr. law Yiu
Fat Richard, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Li Kit Chee who will offer
themselves for election or re-election at the next annual general meefing
are included in the circular fo Shareholders containing the nofice of the
forthcoming annual general meefing.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board members acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

Every Director is required to know his responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Group,
and should act in good faith, exercise due diligence and act in the
best inferests of the Group and its shareholders. On appointment, new
Directors will receive a comprehensive, formal induction on the Group's
business and his responsibilities as a Director.
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21



22

TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

o R

(H)

P/ Tl Wl o5 REU [ g il
BIIAESETESFRINIZESTR
(MEEFRDIEAEZEITESFRHZ
IRSFAl - BIELRRIERE - 28E
EHER - FEREBEFEE2EETE
REFRIERS TR EAI R EAESET
BHERHZITRFA|

EERBUEERITEFEEYARQRAMN
ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ&ﬁm&kﬁﬁiﬁmﬁ
B EITEHRET o

EXZ8T
EXRERUERRES  FMZES
FREZREE -

FREEE
ERZBQERARN—NNANFERL - &
BREE2ZEN_T-RF A+—A
ERAEEERTRITIAERT - YT
B B Ak N B SX P ARG

ENZBSARRHRERARE LY
BRERRF - B EIE R AR E
B BHAKBZHMBENRETE
n YMERRRHEENER -

ERZEelaBEERE(HAB Y
BITEF)BRAEEIREMAE EF

BRERIN=RKE - BHWEE - 8
FHEERFHz RE(EHARBIIE
HITEE) BRZESENEHLER
ERGEXTEREEERR - Bk
%%&»%Y%%E&i%Z%&ﬁﬁ
HEZSHIEBYHERER - UFKF
BEMBRBNEI2VEZHBTE - DA
ENRBERZEGIWE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

(H)

#t % CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
fransactions. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors'’
securities fransactions for the year under review.

The Board would review regularly the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether he
is spending sufficient time performing them.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established its Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was first established in 1999. lts terms of reference
the CG Code effective on 11 June 2015

and they have been posted on the Company's website and the Stock

were revised with reference to

Exchange's website.

The Audit Commitiee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process, risk management and inferal control system
of the Group, reviewing the Group's financial information, compliance
and providing advice and comments 1o the Board.

The Audit Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Fan Chor Ho who is an
Independent Non-executive Director, comprises three other members,
namely Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and Mr. li
Kit Chee, who are Independent Non-executive Directors. Each member
of the Audit Committee possesses in-depth experience in his own
profession. Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Li Kit Chee
possess appropriate accounting or relevant financial management
experfise and meet the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary is the secretary of the Audit Commitiee.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Commitiee
held three meefings. The attendance of each commitiee member is as

follows:-

Independent Nonexecutive Directors Attendance
Mr. Fan Chor Ho (Chairman of the Audiit Committee) 2/3
M:r. Tse Man Bun 3/3
Mr. lung Chee Ming, George /3
Mr. Li Kit Chee 3/3

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2015, final results for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016, and reviewed and discussed
with the external auditors over the financial reporting of the Group.
The Audit Committee reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with
the management in relation to auditing, system of internal control, and
financial reporting matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
connected fransaction(s)/internal audit related party transaction(s), if
any, enfered info by the Group during the year, made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors and
reviewed and approved the remuneration of the external auditors. The
Audit Committee has also reviewed the whistleblowing policy and anti-
bribery and anti-corruption compliance policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. lts terms of
reference were revised with reference to the CG Code effective on 1
April 2012 and they have been posted on the Company's website and
the Stock Exchange's website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations
fo the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and members of the Senior Management. It is the Group's
policy to provide remuneration packages at fair market value in order
fo affract and refain high quality staff. No Directors or any of his
associates, is involved in defermining his own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee led by its Chairman, Mr. Tse Man Bun
who is an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises four other
members, namely, Mr. Wang Tianbing who is a Non-executive
Director and also the Chairman, Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor who is
an Executive Director and also Vice Chairman and Managing Director,
and Mr. Fan Chor Ho and Mr. Li Kit Chee who are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Remuneration Committee
complies with the requirements of chairmanship and independence of
the Listing Rules.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings and the attendance of each committee

member is as follows:-

Name of Directors Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor 2/2
Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Tianbing 0/2
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tse Man Bun

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 2/2
Mr. Fan Chor Ho 2/2
Mr. Li Kit Chee 2/2

During the year, the Remuneration Commitiee has made recommendation
o the Board on the remuneration packages and discrefionary bonuses
of the Executive Directors, Senior Management and the Non-executive
Directors for the Board's consideration. Such packages include benefits
in kind, pension rights (or its equivalent, where appropriate) and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or fermination of their office or appointment, as the case may be.
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Pursuant fo code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of the Senior Management by band for
the year ended 31 March 2016 is as follows:-

EEAE

Number of

employees

HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 ]
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 ]
HK$4,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 2
4

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements of the
Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 28 March 2012.
lis terms of reference were adopted with reference to the CG Code
effective on 1 April 2012 and they have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, among other things,
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
re-appointment of Board members as well as succession planning for
Directors to the Board.
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The Nomination Commitiee led by its Chairman, Mr. Wang Tianbing
who is a Nonexecutive Director and also the Chairman, comprises four
other members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung
Chee Ming, George, and Mr. li Kit Chee who are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

Name of Directors Attendance
Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Tianbing

(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) 1/1
Independent Non-executive Direciors
M:r. Fan Chor Ho 1/1
Mr. Tse Man Bun 1/1
Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 1/1
Mr. Li Kit Chee 1/1

During the year, the Nomination Committee has conducted an annual
review of the independence of all Independent Non-executive Direcfors
and confirmed that all the Independent Non-executive Directors satisfied
the independence criteria as sef out in the listing Rules, reviewed
the proposed re-appoiniment of Directors and an Independent Non-
executive Director, and the appointment of Non-executive Directors, and
the Board diversity policy.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among Board members,
it is the policy of the Company fo consider a number of factors when
deciding on appointments to the Board and the continuation of
those appointments. Such factors include gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, and length of service, in addifion to factors based on the
Group's business models and specific needs from time fo fime.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the financial
statements of the Company are set out in the “Independent Auditors’
Report” on pages 65 and 66.

Defails of the fees paid/payable to the Company's auditors, Ernst &
Young, during the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:-

FHET

HK$000

Auditing services 2,833
Non-auditing services

Taxation services 40

Being a reporting accountant for a corporate exercise 3,973

Others 688

7,534

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secrefary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and the Board policy and procedures
are followed. The Company Secretary is primarily responsible for
advising the Board through the Chairman on governance matters and
facilitating induction and professional development of Directors. The
Board will approve the selection and appointment and dismissal of the
Company Secretary who reports to the Chairman and/or the Directors.
All Direcfors have access fo the advice and services of the Company
Secrefary fo ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable
law, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary,
Miss Wong Suk Han Kitty who is an employee of the Group, has duly
complied with the relevant training requirement under the Listing Rules for

the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility to ensure that the Group maintains
sound and effective controls to safeguard its assets and the Shareholders'
investments. The Audit Committee conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the infernal control system of the Group covering the
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. During the annual review, the Audit Commitiee has considered
the adequacy of resources, sfaff qualifications and experience, fraining
programmes and budgets of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting function. Based on the assessment made by the management
of the Group, the Audit Commitiee considered that the Group's infernal
control systems are effective and adequate for its present requirements.

Inside Information

With respect fo procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(1) is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced immediately it is the
subject of a decision;

(2)  conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” and “Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in June 2012
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2008 respectively;

(3] has included in the "Confidentiality of Information”, a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information; and

(4] has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board established the “Corporate Governance Policy” on 28
March 2012. The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions sef out in the terms of reference below:-

(1) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and Senior Management;

(3)  fo review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4] to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any] applicable to Directors and
employees of the Group; and

(5] to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code set ouf in compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report fo be issued by
the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company mainfains a high level of transparency in communicating
with Shareholders. In order to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and insfitutional investors of the Company, the Company
established a Shareholders” Communication Policy on 28 March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure effective and timely
dissemination of information to Shareholders and encourage their
parficipation at general meetings of the Company. The Shareholders'
Communication Policy is set out below:-

(1) Shareholders may refer to information disclosed publicly or
send their enquiries to the Company's registered office or ifs
principal place of business for the time being, for the attention
of the Company Secrefary. For enquiries on their shareholdings,
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong Branch Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited.
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Shareholders may access the Company's information from
its annual reports, interim reports, announcements, circulars
and notices of meetings. This information and documents are
available on the Company's website and published on the Stock
Exchange's website. The annual reports, inferim reports, circulars,
and nofices of general meetings (where appropriate, with proxy
form) of the Company are also despatched o Shareholders.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meefing and general meetfings of the Company. Shareholders
may also express their views, discuss the progress of the
Company and understand the operations of the Company through
the annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company will review this Policy regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.

Enquiries and questions on the procedures for convening or
putting forward proposals may be put to the Board by contacting
either the Company Secrefary through the Company's general
line at (852) 2882 3632, email at info@fysan.com, directly
by questions af an annual general meefing or special general
meefing of the Company or by post fo the Company's regisfered
office or its principal place of business for the time being.

The Company has ensured that each substantially separate issue will be

dealt with at general meetings by way of a separate resolution.

Shareholders are informed of the procedure and their rights fo demand

a poll. The Company will ensure compliance with the requirements

about voting by poll contained in the listing Rules and the Bye-laws.

The procedures for voting by poll are set out in the Company's circular

relating fo the general meeting and will be explained during the meeting

before voting on the resolutions.
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(N) SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Since the Shareholders may convene a special general meeting and

make any proposals such as propose a person other than an existing

Director for election as a Director at such meeting, the detailed

procedures of convening a special general meeting and making any

proposals are sef out in a document entifled “Shareholders’ rights to put

forward a proposal at a general meeting” which has been published in

the Company's website and set out below:-

(1)

2)

(3

(4)

According fo Byelaw 58 of the Byedaws, a Shareholder holding
not less than onetenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting af general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, fo require a special general meeting
["SGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction or any
business specified in such requisition.

The written request must state the objects of the meefing, signed
by the Shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of those
requisifionists |"Requisitionists”).

The request by the Requisitionists will be verified with the
Company's Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request by the Requisitionists is proper and in order, the Company
Secrefary will request the Board to convene a SGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements and
in compliance with the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request by the
Requisitionists has been verified as not in order, the Requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not
be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed fo convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may convene the meefing themselves in accordance with Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended
from time to time.
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(5

(6]

(7)

If o Shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at an SGM
("Proposals’), he can deposit a written nofice fo that effect at the
principal place of business or the office of the Company's branch
share registrar, for the attention of the Company Secrefary. The
request by the Requisitionists will be verified as stated above.

The notice period to be given 1o all the registered Shareholders
for consideration of a proposal raised by the Shareholders
concemed at a SGM varies according fo the nature of the
proposal as follows:-

o the longer of 14 clear days' and 10 business days' notice
in wriing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolufion
of the Company; and

0 21 clear days' notice in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company.

Whether a proposal will be put to a general meeting will be
decided by the Board in ifs discretion, unless the proposal put
forward by a Shareholder is (i) pursuant fo a requisition by a
Shareholder to convene a SGM or |ii] forms part of ordinary
business to be considered at an annual general meefing as
described in Byedaw 61(1) of the Bye-laws.

Enquiries may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our general line at (852) 2882
3632, e-mail at info@tysan.com, directly by questions at an
annual general meeting or SGM or by post fo the registered
office of the Company or head office and the principal place of
business of the Company.
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(O) REEBHR (O) INVESTOR RELATIONS
ARRERXHETBERL AR A copy of the constitutional documents of the Company has been
B PABYL o £ ARRIZERXH published at the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.
WSS E O o During the year, there was no change to the Company's consfitutional
documents.
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£ X3 & H WY CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

THE COMPANY

Tysan Holdings Limited has been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong limited since 1991. Tysan Holdings Limited and ifs subsidiaries
(the “Group") operate in Hong Kong, Macau, Shanghai, Tianjin and
Shenyang and have about 1,300 employees. The Group is principally
engaged in foundation piling in Hong Kong as well as property
development, property investment and management in the PRC.

PHILOSOPHY OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to fulfilling its corporate social responsibility
through taking info account the needs of its stakeholders, the impact of
its operations on the environment and development opportunities for its
employees. The Group has incorporated the concept of corporate social
responsibility info ifs business objectives. It considers its employees
are the most valuable resources and will sirive to create a safe and
harmonious working environment and opportunities for development for
its employees.

SCOPE AND METHODOLOGY

This is the second corporate social responsibility report of the Group and
the report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Guide, Appendix 27
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“listing Rules”). The corporate governance report
prepared in compliance with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules has been
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this
Annual Report.

The Group has reviewed indusiry peers’ work and conducted a
materiality assessment to identify Key Performance Indices ("KPls") which
are relevant to its operations. KPls are ranked to determine the most
material impacts according fo ifs corporate strategy and best practice
sustainability guidelines.
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Based on the Group's first corporate social responsibility report, this
report elaborates mainly on the Group's headquarters in Hong Kong,
the foundation operation in Hong Kong, PRC's branch offices and
the property development and management operation in the PRC, the
geographic areas where the Group's operations may have social,
environmental and economic impacis.

The Group has collected data from one of its key subsidiaries, Tysan
Foundation Limited {“Tysan Foundation”) which is principally engaged
in foundation and related works including foundation piling, subsfructure
and basement consruction, site formation, ground investigation, landslip
preventive and slope works, demolition as well as road and drainage
works for public and/or private sectors during the financial year ended
31 March 2016. The Group has collected some data from Hong
Kong's headquarters and PRC's branch offices, and the properties
developed in the PRC which includes The Waterfront, The Riverside and
The Pinnacle.

This report covers the Group's corporate social responsibility work
progress from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016, unless stated
otherwise.

STAKEHOLDERS" ENGAGEMENT

looking forward, the Group plans to conduct an Environmental,
Social and Governance survey as well as an internal stakeholder
engagement meefing before the year ending 31 March 2017. The
Group believes such engagement would allow the Group to have a
better understanding on stakeholders” views on the Group's sustainable
development so as fo formulate the Group's sustainability strategy.
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5. IFRIREZR 5. WORKPLACE QUALITY
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The Group places a strong emphasis on workforce development. As
at 31 March 2016, the Group has 1,348 employees in Hong Kong,
Macau and PRC. The breakdown of the employee tumover rates are as

36

mr follows:
Tk

Turnover Rate
7R8I D By gender
L Male -0.92%
eg i Female -0.60%
B ERA D By employment position
mRERE Senior Management 0.00%
FEERE Middle Management -10.11%
Ak —MRET Fronfline and general staff 9.86%
BRERE By age group
18220 18-20 -90.00%
21230 21-30 -14.88%
31 &40 31-40 -13.40%
41250 41-50 -8.25%
51260 51-60 -14.85%
613k 61 or above 44.79%
i E D By location
i Hong Kong 9.58%
R Macau -66.67%
& Shanghai -20.57%
R Tianjin -6.99%
&S Shenyang 43.18%
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The Group regards honesty, infegrity and fair play as its core values that
must be upheld by all directors, officers, and employees at all fimes. The
Group's Employee Handbook has detailed provisions for compensation
and dismissal, working hours, leave policy, conflict of interest,
intellectual property rights, privacy and confidentiality of information,
anti-bribery and anti-corruption, and other benefit and welfare.

The Group strictly observes the “Provision on Prohibition of Child
Labour” and other related regulations. During the recruitment process,
Human Resources Department will carry out proper review on successful
applicants to ensure full compliance. After the employments have been
confirmed, signed employment contracts will be arranged and kept as
records. Appropriate measures will be taken to prevent and resolve
any breach on child labour and forced labour. During the period
under review, the Group's directors are not aware of any breach of
legislations or non-compliance related to equal opportunities, child
labour or forced labour.

The Group has adopted the Whistleblowing Policy and Anti-Bribery and
Anti-Corruption Policy which are applicable to all directors, officers,

employees, agents, representatives and other persons acfing on behalf
of the Group since 30 June 2014.

The Whistleblowing Policy encourages employees who have concemns
about any suspected misconduct or malpractice within the Group to
come forward and voice those concerns through a confidential reporting
channel to the Depariment Head/Supervisor or the Managing Director
of the Group/the General Manager of China Division or the Chairman
of the Audit Committee. Reported cases that warrant investigations will

be referred 1o the Audit Committee.

The Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy provides a channel fo the
employees fo report any concern or suspicion about possible bribery
or corruption directly to the Managing Director of the Company/the
General Manager of China Division for matters in connection with the
operations in the PRC/the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee. Where
possible, agreements with third parties should contain provisions
requiring them to comply with applicable anti-bribery and corruption
laws which are consistent with the Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

Policy.
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During the period under review, the Group has complied with relevant
laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which it conducts business in
all material aspects.

The performance and confribution of staff are awarded by a structured
performance appraisal system. The Group values the opinions of ifs
employees and staff are encouraged fo make suggestions, ask questions
or report pofential issues or concemns to their direct supervisors through
regular appraisal.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group is committed fo providing a healthy and safe environment for
its employees and other people who may be affected by the Group's
operations. Maintaining high standards of health and safety for all its
activities is the prevailing consideration over all other factors. Adequate
and appropriate resources are provided fo implement health and
safety policy to ensure all the prevailing legislation and any contractual
requirement relating fo health and safety are complied with in all
material aspects.

Occupational health and safety data for the year ended 31 March
2016

Fatalities (No.) 0
Incident Severity Rafe
(No. of lost days per 100,000 man-hours) 107

Reportable Accident Rate
(No. of reportable accident per 1,000 employees| 23.5
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The Group continues ifs efforts fo profect employees’ health and safety
in different aspects. Due to the nature of works in the foundation
indusiry, risks of accidents or injuries fo workers are inherent. As such,
Tysan Foundation has formulated a health and safety policy for all the
staff as required by relevant occupational health and safety laws, rules
and regulations. The health and safety manual (the “Health and Safety
Manual’) is documented in writing and there are supplementary safety
method stafements jointly prepared by project managers, construction
managers, safety officers and plant manager etc, as well as insfructions,
fraining and demonstration at construction sites. During the period
under review, a “Good-Practice Safety Handbook” is written in Nepali,
together with a detailed explanation, helping Nepalese workers
assimilate info the daily operation in a quick and safe manner. Tysan
Foundation requires strict compliance and adherence of the health and
safety policy by the employees and the subcontractors.

Principal measures of the Health and Safety Manual are set out below:

* A twolevel safety committee system has been established fo
provide advice and support fo management, employees and
workers of all levels, to coordinate the implementation of safety
management systems and fo provide periodic sofety performonce
report.

o The safety officer together with the site team of a project will
prepare a project specific safety plan af the commencement of
the project. Operations and acfiviies that are associated with
identified hazards and measures fo control the identified risks will
be prescribed in such plan. The project specific safety plan will
help prevent accidents/control identifiable risks in each project
by highlighting the safety control measures o be adopted in each

case.

e Internal and external safety training will be arranged to all
levels of staff, from executive directors to frontline operafives
on safety in accordance with the statutory and contractual
requirements. Internal safety training sessions include (i) induction
fraining conducted within two days after a new worker joining
a consfruction site; (i) weekly safety training and toolbox talks;
and (i) ad hoc safety training for workers engaging in high
risk acfivities. External safety fraining sessions to be attended
by workers in accordance with the statutory and contractual
requirements will also be arranged.
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All personnel are required to follow the general safety rules
adopted by Tysan Foundation which are posted on conspicuous
nofice boards.

Regular site inspections and visits are carried out by both frontline
supervisors and safety officers of Tysan Foundation to ensure
compliance with statutory provisions by all workers (including
subcontractors’ employees|.

Risk assessment will be conducted for Head Office and
Construction activities respectively, and reviewed on a regular
basis.

In order to promote safety culture among frontline workforce,
selected operatives (both Tysan Foundation’s employees
and subcontractors’ employees) with continuous good safety
performance will be crowned as “star of the month” and awarded
with supermarket voucher.

Safety awards will be granted on a yearly-basis to the project
team of individual construction project and the corresponding
subcontractor with good safety performance over the year, in
order fo encourage them fo build a safe working environment.

Tysan Foundation has engaged an external qualified safety auditor
(who is registered with the Labour Department) to conduct safety
audits for both company and project levels as required under sfatutory
requirements. Audit results reassure that the efficiency, effectiveness
and reliability of the safety management systems adopted by Tysan
Foundation are up fo standard.
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granted the following awards:
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Award - Bronze Award
EFIMERA2ME S48 NEMBR—ERE
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Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge Hong
Kong Boundary Crossing
Facilities Passenger
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Considerate Contractor Site
Award — Merit Award
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Safety Enhancement Program
Award — Bronze Award (Bored
Pile Concreting Working

Platform)
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Award Scheme

2015818 TR 21
Innovative Safety Inifiative

Award 2015
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2 1st Considerate Contractor

Site Award Scheme

FE21 B AEEETE
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Site Award Scheme
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During the period under review, Tysan Foundation sfrived fo improve the
aspects of creativity, uniqueness, practicability and cost effectiveness of
the safety management system. The effort made was well recognized by
our counterparties and official organizations and Tysan Foundation was

IR

Organization

BRE  BEXASRER
REREEH

Development Bureau
("DEVB")/Construction Industry
Council |"CIC")/The Hong
Kong Consfruction Association

["HKCA")

BRREMEERZGAM
DEVB/CIC

BRREMEERZGAM
DEVB/CIC

BRZE2REFER
Occupational Safety and

4th Hong Kong Occupational  Health Council

Safety & Health Award

Tysan Foundation had also been awarded by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency with OHSAS18001:2007 certificate and complied
with the requirements of occupational health and safety management
system. Tysan Foundation is also a Green Cross Group member of the
Occupational Safety and Health Council and is defermined fo improve

the standard of occupational safety and health.
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The Group pays close aftenfion fo the health of the employees. Tysan
Foundation has developed a rehabilitation scheme, which provides
injured consfruction workers with immediate and appropriate specialized
medical freatment, so that on one hand injured workers will recover
and reqjoin the work force as soon as possible and on the other hand,
valuable public health care resources can be saved for people more in
need.

Comparison on the average waiting time of “Rehabilitation Scheme”
and “Public Health Care”

V& &Y RXE ErZA
Ist medical Follow-up XRay Specialist
consultation consultation examination consuliation
> 2\ > 1N ORI > 12{8A
>2 hours >1 hour approx.1 hour  >12 months
=157 =157 15788 IS

=15 mins =15 mins approx. 15 mins  Same day

In our PRC property deve|opmem, property invesiment and management
operation, the Group has implemented the following health and safety
measures fo protect and enhance the health of its employees:

*  Heatstroke prevention drinks were provided fo the frontline

workforce in summer.

e Sofety equipment which is renewed on a regular basis has been
provided fo the fronfline workforce. Safety notices are posted on
conspicuous nofice boards to remind our employees on safe use
of tools.

e Asfalf body checkup program was held in Shanghai and Tianjin
respectively, so that employees could have a better understanding
on their health condition and nip in the bud.

e When the Group relocated its branch office in Shanghai,
a professional team was hired for conducting removal of
formaldehyde in the new office to ensure that air quality complied
with the national standard before the relocation took place.

J In Shenyang, products with low concentrations of volatile organic
compounds such as paints, coatings, sealants and adhesive
materials, were adopted in the construction site as far as possible.
Barriers were set up in the construction zone fo prevent the
pollutants from expanding fo public areas.

*  The Group also requires ifs contractors to provide safety plans
for each construction work for the Group's approval before the
commencement of work.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group strives o enhance the fraining and development of its
workforce progressively to meet the business needs and fo facilitate the
employees to maintain their industry’s qualification. For example, internal
fraining such as induction training is provided by Tysan Foundation
from fime fo time. External fraining on quality, environment, health and
safety, management related areas, other work-related advance studies
are supported by the Group's education allowance. During the period
under review, the average training hours of the employees are set out
below.

PSR Average Training Hours
N A IR

Hours Internal External
B2 By gender
S Male 4.68 0.65 4.03
pegid Female 7.27 $.25 3.52
BERERED By employment position
SRERE Senior Management 2.21 0 2.21
FEERE Middle Management 5.06 0.01 5.05
AR —RET Frontline and general staff 5.4 1.58 3.82
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8.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

The Group recognizes the importance of combating greenhouse gas
effect and is committed fo low-carbon practices in its operations and
implement reduction measures in its business. During the reporting
period, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
related to emission as well as the newly formulated regulation (effective
on st June 2015): “Air pollution Control [Non-road Mobile Machinery)
(Emission) Regulation” (Chapter 3112 of the laws of Hong Kong).
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Transport

In view of reducing fuel usage and improving the overall carbon
footprint, the Group complies with the requirements of Hong Kong
BEAM PLUS (New Buildings Version 1.2). Over 50% of raw materials
used are sourced or manufactured within a range of 800km of
a construction site in Hong Kong, so as to avoid long distance
fransportation and minimize carbon footprint. Consfruction materials
used in the PRC projects are locally sourced or manufactured in cities
nearby (such as Beijing and Tianjin) as much as possible. The Group
also provides frontline workforce with environmentfriendly private cars
for daily operations.

In line with the requirement of ISO14001 Environmental Management
System, the procurement policies of Tysan Foundation give priority
to ecofriendly confractors and suppliers. Our contract ferms require
contractors and suppliers to comply with environmental protection
policies which cover identification of materials, processes, products and
wasfes that cause or may cause pollution, and to implement measures fo
avoid, reduce or control pollution where technically and economically
viable.

Energy Management

The Group has defined criteria for assessing energy use, consumption
and efficiency over the planned or expected operating lifefime when
procuring products, equipment and services that use energy where
such items are likely to significantly affect its energy performance. All
procurement processes are handled by the Procurement Department
which selects the most suitable suppliers according to the specified
requirements. Regular reviews have been conducted by the Group to
ensure the procurement processes are in order.

The Group is committed fo continuous improvement in its Energy
Management System and energy efficiency. In order to comply with
the applicable legal and other requirements related to foundation
operations, Tysan Foundation provides all necessary resources and
information fo meet its energy fargets and objectives. lis energy
objective is fo enhance the energy performance against the baseline
by reducing the diesel consumption rafe by 3% for excavation cranes in
public housing projects.
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Electricity consumption of the head office
BETHNEHRE

Electricity consumption for construction sites
REH RS

Consumption of paper of head office
BETHHFKE

Water consumption for consruction sites
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Energy and material consumption for the year ended 31 March
2016

BEREROOTRE

9.6 kWhs/sg. ft.
FEEAE %% 0.0007 7
0.0007 Litre/Turnover
BEFRER28ET

HKD2.8 per sq. ft.

BGEER &5 0.0003 L5 K
0.0003 Meter Cube/Tumover

Both technical and administrative measures have been implemented by
the Group fo reduce energy consumption and resources consumption in
the construction sites and head office. Energy efficiency level was taken
info consideration when Tysan Foundation considered procurement and
design of new products or services.

The Group has used the Document Management System fo facilitate
electronic storage and sharing of documents and has reduced the use
of paper. Meanwhile, the Group has also participated the Recycling
Program of Chrisimas trees, Peach Blossom frees and CNY Plants held
by Hong Kong Environmental Protection Association. Furthermore,
choosing energy efficient appliances with a Grade 1 energy efficiency
performance, using energy saving fluorescent tubes T5 and the
installation of LED lamps also shows the Group's initiative on energy
saving.

At the construction sites, Tysan Foundation also seeks to improve ifs
operation on environmental profection and, ultimately, minimize or even
prevent any environmental impacts of its operations, activities, products,
and services. Environmental management systems and BEAM PLUS for
New Buildings Version 1.2 have been developed and implemented
by Tysan Foundation for identifying materials, processes, products and
wastes that cause or may cause pollution. Significant environmental
aspects such as excessive materials, consfruction noise, dust emission,
waste water, construction wastes, chemical waste and use of paper
have been identified.
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During the period under review, various measures have been undertaken
fo mitigate the extent of wasfe, noise, dust and water pollution produced
during foundation works:

o Steel materials, concrete and rock wastes were reused.

®  Proper chemical wasfe container/packaging was used fo collect
chemical waste.

e Noise enclosure was used for mitigating noise generated by
noisy works.

e Waler scrubber was installed on crawler crane to mitigate
exhaust fume.

e The Ringelmann Chart was used to regularly inspect the dark
smoke emission of powered mechanical equipment and
immediate action will be taken if necessary.

O Waste water was reused affer freatment using a comprehensive
sedimentation system for piling works.

e Waste water treatment facilities and personnel with adequate
qualification and experience were engaged for sewage disposal
so as fo ensure that the chemical oxygen demand, suspended
solids and pH value disposed comply with Environmental
Profection Department regulation.

Following the implementation of a series of environmental protection
policies, Tysan Foundation was awarded 1SO14001:2004 and
ISO50001:2011 certificates by the Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency confirming that Tysan Foundation has complied with the
requirements of environmental management and energy management
system standard.

The effort made on promoting a considerate affitude and good
environmental practices for project sites was also well recognized
by counterparts and official insfitutions so that Tysan Foundation was
granted the Merit Award in the 2015 "Outstanding Environmental
Management & Performance Award Scheme” which was coorganised
by the DEVB and the CIC.
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During the period under review, various measures have been undertaken
fo mitigate the extent of wasfe, noise, dust and water pollufion produced
in PRC property development and management operation:

* A delegated personls) is assigned fo monitor electricity
consumption in the construction site in Shenyang to ensure that
power supply is properly shut down in non-working area.

e Arrangements on reducing the impact of noise pollution have
been put into consideration when preparing the construction work
plan in Shenyang.

° Increasing the greening area of The Pinnacle, our project in
Shenyang, by proactively carried out greening works on both
sides of the river around The Pinnacle with an area of about /7,800
sqm.

* Q0% of the fumiture in Shanghai's new office was moved from the
old office. Air conditioners which were in good conditions will be
moved and reused in different rental properties in Shanghai.

®  [ED lamps are used in Shanghai's new office and car park
basement of The Waterfront, with an esfimate saving in energy of
over 94,000KW per annum.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group works with a number of suppliers for each type of raw
materials, parts and components. As part of our supply chain risk
management, we avoid excessive reliance on a small number of
suppliers. In foundation business, the key raw materials mainly consist
of concrefe, reinforcement steel bars and other sfeel products such as
H-piles, sheet piles and pipe piles. It is also common for foundation
business to subcontract the works for some pile types, welding, groufing,
steel fixing, ground investigation, pile cap and basement works.
Tysan Foundation has maintained a list of more than 25 raw materials
suppliers and approximately 165 subcontractors respectively which
is approved by the executive directors. In the PRC, the Group has 59
materials suppliers, 9 contactors and 51 subcontractors.
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To ensure high quality, Tysan Foundation has taken a number of
proactive measures to monitor the raw materials suppliers and
subcontractors. Tysan Foundation reviews performance of the raw
material suppliers and subcontractors, including but not limited to the
quality performance, environment performance and health and safety
performance annually. Measures to monitor subcontractors include (i)
requiring subcontractors fo follow in-house rules of Tysan Foundation
in relation to work quality, occupational safety and environmental
protection; (i) sending site managers and supervisors of Tysan
Foundation fo construction sites for daily monitoring; {iii) holding regular
meefings af sifes with subcontractors to discuss project progress, quality,
safety and environmental issues; (iv) conducting site safety inspections
and review safety issues on a regular basis; [v) issuing formal warning
letrers or fines nofes to subcontractors for any non-compliance of rules or
safety measures; and |vi) granting awards or prizes fo recognise good
performers.

HERNENE

Geographical location of suppliers
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10. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group strives fo provide and sell quality products or services to its
customers.

In relation fo foundation business, Tysan Foundation follows 1SOQ001
Quality Management System strictly on every single step to ensure all
construction processes are executed in accordance with the confract
specifications, the latest applicable drawings, the architect's instructions
and the statutory requirements, etc. As a result, effective and reliable
services are provided.

2B
Number
Total number of total products sold subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons 0
Total number of products and service related
complaints received 3

The Group places strong emphasis on quality assurance and
compliance with quality, project schedule, budget, environmental
and safety requirements. During the construction stage of The Pinnacle
in Shenyang, daily site inspections are carried out by the frontline
supervisory engineers. Moreover, quality checks are conducted by the
frontline supervisory engineers on every step, before moving to the next
one, to ensure all processes are executed in accordance with the pre-
approved prototype. Furthermore, representatives from the frontline
supervisory feam, the contractor and the corresponding subcontractor
attend weekly meetings fo solve problems jointly in a timely manner.

The Group seeks feedbacks from our customers proactively. Comments
and suggestions from customers/tenants are followed up by responsible
teams from respective divisions in a timely manner. Complaints received
through direct and indirect channels, such as by phone or by email, are
acknowledged in a timely manner and recorded for appropriate follow-
up actions.

In the foundation business, projectin-charge of the Tysan Foundation will
receive a monthly summary on complaints reported. Complained cases
will be followed up by dedicated teams from respective divisions in a
fimely manner.
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In Shanghai and Tianjin, the property management team has esfablished
a system fo handle in complaints from the owners/tenants efficiently.
The customer service team is able to response to a complaint within 24
hours under normal circumsfances. In Shenyang, the Group proactively
invites representatives of the Shenyang government, media, property
management company and property owners to affend seminars, in
order fo share their views and needs directly with the Group's Executive
Director and General Manager of China division.

A "Property Services Safisfaction Survey” is conducted by the property
management team of The Waterfront in Shanghai annually. The 2015
survey results indicated that approximately 93% of the respondents are
satisfied with the property services.

The Group handles customer data privacy with due care and who
complied with the requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
Hong Kong in our operations in Hong Kong. During the period under
review, the Group did nof receive any complaints regarding the breach
of customer privacy and losses of customer data from any external

parties or regulators.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group shows its care fo local community, our employees and the
underprivileged.

Care for the Community

The Group cares about the community, in particular the long-term
development of youth. For over a decade, the Group has established
a solid partnership with “Youth Outreach”, which is a non-profit
making organization, by giving continuous charitable donations of

HK$100,000 annually and providing skills training services.

In Shanghai, The Waterfront facilitated the “2015 Paper Airplane
Contest”, a family activity hosted by the Rende Foundation with an aim
of enhancing the creativity of children. All donations were contributed to
the purchase of healthy lunch boxes for children in the mountainous area

of Yunnan.

In Shenyang, the Group's employees at The Pinnacle participated in
the 2015 "Walk for Light”, a charitable activity hosfed by the Delos
Foundation International, with an aim of encouraging the staff to care
for the vulnerable groups. All donations were contributed in helping
cafaract patients in Shigatse, Tibet o recover from blindness.
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Frontline supervisory staff of Tysan Foundation will take the initiative
fo re-arrange consiruction work plan and the access time of heavy
vehicles, in order fo minimize the impact on fraffic during school time
and the nuisance occurred fo neighbouring students during examination
period.

Furthermore, frontline supervisory staff will attend meetings with the
representatives of the community and listen fo their feedbacks on the
consruction project. Timely measures will be taken in order fo eliminate
the nuisance occurred fo residents nearby.

Care for our Employees

The Group cares about the well being of its employees as well. The
Group's employees may participate in a series of leisure activities
organized by its Recreational Club. Such activities include barbecue,
ball games, annual staff travel, annual dinner and dragon boat
racing which help building the team and a sense of belonging to the
Group. An annual staff travel was held in branch offices of Tianjin and
Shenyang respectively, providing an opportunity for staff from different
departments to get to know each other better.

Care for the Underprivileged

The Group cares about the community solidarity and has provided
job opportunities in support of the vulnerable groups. In Shanghai,
we employed physically-challenged employees from time to time.
Furthermore, we have entered to cooperation agreements with social
organizations, to offer jobs to middleaged people with employment
difficulties.

In Shanghai, the property management team of The Waterfront will
provide simple household mainfenance services fo the vulnerable
groups free of charge. In Tianjin, the property management team of The
Riverside will pay more affention to the vulnerable groups of the estate,
so as fo offer assistance in a fimely manner.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

The board of directors of the Company ("Directorls)’) herein present their report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in nofes 1 and
16 to the financial statements, respectively.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

Details of the business review information are sef out in the section headed
"Chairman’s Statement” on pages 2 to 9 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group recognises environmental protection is of vital imporfance to the
long term development of the Group. In order to minimise the environmental
impact, the Group will continue to review and improve the effectiveness of ifs
management practices from time fo fime.

For details, please refer fo the section headed “Corporate Social Responsibility
Report” on pages 34 fo 51 of this annual report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and the PRC while the Company was incorporated in
Bermuda and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”] in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Group has allocated resources to
ensure ifs operations are in compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, Bermuda, the PRC and Macau.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
of the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may face have been
disclosed in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 2 fo 9 of
this annual report. In addition, details of the Group's financial risk management
are disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements.

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Directors are of view that maintaining a good working relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers are the keys to the susfainable
development of the Group. During the year ended 31 March 2016, there
was no significant dispute between the Group and its employees, customers
and suppliers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
67 10 188.

An interim dividend of HK20.0 cents per ordinary share of the Company
(“Share”) was paid on 28 December 2015. The Board of Directors has
resolved not fo recommend any final dividend in respect of the year ended 31

March 2016.
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B ERME SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

TEBAAEEHEZE-_F—~F=A=1+— The following table summarises the consolidated results, assets, liabilities
BIthEAFEZHE%E BE  AEK3IE  and noncontrolling interests of the Group for the five years ended 31 March
PRRARER s 0 L DERSRE B AMKEZE 2016, as extracted from the published audited financial statements. The
BRE - ZMES TERCEZIEIREK L summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

—&5 o
“E-R"F ZE-hF —T-MFE T CT-_F
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
R EERF Profit atfributable fo ordinary
equity holders of the Company 396,874 399,394 270,020 348,479 97,953
BEE Total assets 5,608,055 5,567,868 5276784 5073547 4,130,523
BmafE Total liabilities 2,830,863 2,635,299 2565507 2,703,578 2,093,376
ALRFEBR Equity atiributable o ordinary
BRI ER equity holders of the Company 2,688,403 2,742,074 2,481,970 2,338,559 2,015,936
Ell et Non-confrolling inferests 88,789 190,495 229,307 31,410 21,211
5,608,055 5,567,868 5,276,784 5073547 4,130,523
IR 7 K B e v SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

RAFER - RRBBEAREBELEZS o There were no movements in the Company's share capital and share options
during the year.

BEBERE PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
ARRZERMARARELZRZYEEBA  There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's byedaws

DEBABLHIRRARRF ZBREITHI  or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
ZEEBEERIE - on a pro rafa basis fo existing shareholders of the Company.

BE - BEHEART 2 LHES PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

RAFEERN  ARBEHEEMMBELRME  Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
BE  BRsKHERRAZEM LHES - any of the Company's listed securifies during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company's reserves available for

distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, amounted to HK$1,120,701,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales fo the Group's five largest customers accounted
for 43% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to 28%. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for 46% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
Mr. Chiu Chin Hung
M. Lau Kin Fai

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Tianbing

Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant
Mr. Justin Wai

Mr. Llaw Yiu Fat Richard
Mr. Yang Han Hsiang (resigned on 17 February 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

M:r. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, George
M. li Kit Chee
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

In accordance with the Company's Byelaws, Mr. law Yiu Fat Richard, Mr.
Tse Man Bun and Mr. i Kit Chee will refire and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr.
Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Tse Man Bun, Mr. lung Chee Ming, George and M. Li Kit
Chee and as at the date of this report still considers them fo be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group
are sef out on pages 10 to 14 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meefing has a service confract with the Company requires the Company, in
order fo terminafe such confract, fo give a period of nofice of more than one
year or fo pay compensation or make other payments equivalent to more than
one year's emoluments.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant fo the Bye-laws of the Company and subject fo the relevant provisions
therein, the Directors, the company secretary of the Company and other
officers acfing in relation to the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/
she shall or may incur or susfain by or by reason of any act done about the
execution of the duties of their respective offices.

For the year under review, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover for the Directors and officers in respect of legal acfions against them in
the course of execution of their duties in good faith.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirecly, in any fransactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the holding companies of
the Company, or any of the Company's subsidiaries was a party during the
year.



EERFTETHAERKRO RBERD
ZRmNIFR

RBEHMR ARREERTETHAR
(TEBTRABDRAR B HEAEREAE (R
BESZRIE RO E R AEGRG ) EXV
AT T 2R ) 2 AR R AR A AN
RARBFRPEHRIIEIS2GFEZER
fipracek - KRB LHBRITAEZETES
RHZFESTA(MERTA ) ARG AR
NP R AT

RARERBEER N 2R

[ ]
R B R AR A

% 3 J3 3 % REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At the end of the reporting period, the inferests and long positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company ("Chief Executive’) in the
share capital and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise nofified fo the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”), were as follows:

long positions in shares of associated corporation of the Company:

HELBRRNERENE

Number of ordinary

(e apA]
L ENERsd
shares held and Percentage of

nature of inferest the associated

EENA fEBEEERE (EPN AL @5 corporation’s
Name of director Name of associated corporation Personal Corporate Total  share capital
HHERE RAMZ(EL)ERAA - 401 40 40

Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
PiHEE

1. ZERAWEA(EB)ERDBNENEEE
BEERERBZARREERARNA -

BEXHBEEN R-F—AE= A
S+—B SEFREBARABHERE
ARFH TR EE 2R  ERRGS
% AR BB S T B 5 352 /A
2% IREEEFHENGALARYR
o2 TR -

Tysan Foundation {Hong Kong] limited

Note:

1. These shares of Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) limited were held by Fortunate
Pool Limited, a company which was wholly-owned by Mr. Fung Chiu Chak,
Victor.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors or
Chief Executive had registered an interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant fo the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Directors” and Chief Executive's
interests and Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and in
the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below, at no time during the
year were rights fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares
in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouses or minor children or Chief Executive or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any
arrangement fo enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute fo the success
of the Group's operations. On 8 August 2012, the Company adopted a
new share option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”) and the scheme adopted on
28 August 2002 (the "2002 Scheme”] was terminated on the same date.
Further details of the 2012 Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the financial

statements.

From 8 August 2012, the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme, to 31
March 2016, no share option was granfed, exercised, expired or lapsed and
there is no outstanding share option under the 2012 Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company were
granted to any Director or their respective spouses or minor children, or Chief
Executive or were any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement fo enable the Directors fo
acquire such rights in any other body corporate under the 2012 Scheme.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

interests required fo be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the

SFO:

long positions in Shares:

Name

Blackstone Group Management L.L.C. 1!

Blackstone Holdings IV GP L.P. 1!

Blackstone Holdings IV GP Management
(Delaware) LP. 11

Blackstone Holdings IV GP
Management L.L.C. 1V

Blackstone Holdings IV L.P. 1V

Blackstone Real Estate Associates
AsiaNQ LP. 1l

Blackstone Real Estate Partners
Asia Holding (NQ) L.P. 1

Blackstone Real Estate Partners
Asic-NQ LP. 1!

BREP Asia Holdings NQ] Pre. Lid. 1!

BREP AsiaNQ LL.C. !

Schwarzman Stephen A. 1!

The Blackstone Group L.P.

Tides Holdings | Lid. 1"

Tides Holdings II Lid.

8007748 Canada Inc.

Air Canada Pension Master Trust Fund 2

Notes:

FERE
Number of
Shares

held

655,999,427
655,999,427

655,999,427

655,999,427
655,999,427

655,999,427

655,999,427

655,999,427
655,999,427
655,999,427
655,999,427
655,999,427
655,999,427
655,999,427

73,044,520

73,044,520

of their equity interess in Tides Holdings Il Lid..

At the end of the reporting period, the following interests of more than 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of

CENCITRE: <oy
e NEpi
Percentage of
the Company's
issued

share capital

75.00
75.00

75.00

75.00
75.00

75.00
75.00

75.00
75.00
75.00
75.00
75.00
75.00
75.00

8.35

8.35

1. These parties were deemed fo have interests in 655,999,427 Shares by virtue

This party was deemed to have interests in 73,044,520 Shares by virtue of its
equity interests in 8007748 Canada Inc..

£ 2015/2016
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2016, no person, other than
the Directors and Chief Executive, whose inferests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's interests and long positions in Shares
and underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company that was required fo be
recorded pursuant fo section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-exempt continuing connecfed transactions

On 3 November 2014, Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited (“TFHKL'),
Tysan Engineering Company Llimited (“TECL"), Proficiency Equipment Limited
("PEL") and Tysan Building Construction Company Llimited (“TBC") entered
info a master agreement [the “Master Agreement”) 1o regulate the business
relationship and subcontracting of works among them (including their

subsidiaries) for a term commencing from 3 November 2014 and ending on
31 March 2017, both days inclusive.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the following subcontracting works
were enfered info amongst the companies mentioned above:

(il Tysan Foundation Limited (“TFL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TFHKL,
subcontracted rental and engineering works relating fo tower cranes of
approximately HK$870,000 to Proficiency Engineering Limited "PEN"),
a subsidiary of PEL.

[ij  TBC subcontracted rental and engineering works relafing to fower
cranes of approximately HK$993,000 to PEN.

(i) TFL subcontracted engineering and mechanical works of approximately
HK$150,000 to Tysan Engineering (H.K.) Limited ("“TEHK"), a
subsidiary of TECL.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions (Cont'd)

Both TFHKL and PEL are subsidiaries of the Company. TBC and TEHK are
ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, ["Mr. Fung"), an
executive director of the Company. In addition, TFHKL, being 40%-owned
by Fortunate Pool Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Fung, is also a
close associate of Mr. Fung. Consequently, TFHKL and TBC are connected
persons of the Company under Rule 14A.07 of the Rules Goverming the
listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “listing Rules”). Thus, the
fransactions mentioned above constitute confinuing connected fransactions for
the Company under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.40 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed these continuing connected fransactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected fransactions have been entered
info:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial ferms or better; and

(3] in accordance with the relevant agreements govering them on ferms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The amounts in respect of the continuing connected fransactions mentioned
above during the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap,
where appropriate, for the transactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions mentioned above, the
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the
year under review.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Non-exempt continuing connected fransactions (Cont'd)

Emst & Young, the Company's auditors, were engaged fo report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audlits or Review of Historical Financial Information and with reference
fo Practice Note 740 Audiitor’s letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected fransactions during the year ended 31 March 2016 disclosed
above by the Group (with a copy provided to the Stock Exchangel in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed that nothing
has come to their atfention that causes them to believe that the confinuing

connected transactions:
(1) have not been approved by the board of Directors;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the fransactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group;

(3] were not entered info, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the fransactions; and

(4] have exceeded the cap disclosed in the circular of the Company dated

28 November 2014
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the
Listing Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of two of the
Company's loan agreements, which confain covenants requiring performance
obligations of the controlling shareholder of the Company, as follows:

i)l Pursuant fo a facility agreement entered info by the Company and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with a syndicate of banks
and financial insfitutions on 8 August 2012 (as supplemented by a leffer
agreement dated 17 March 2014) for five-year term loan facilities of
up fo HK$500,000,000 (the “First Facility”), an event of default arises
if The Blackstone Group L.P., the ultimate controlling shareholder of
the Company, ceases fo hold (directly or indirectly) at least 60% of the
beneficial shareholding inferest and voting rights of the Company; and

(i) Pursuant fo a facility agreement entered info by the Company and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with a bank on 3 November
2015, for a three-year term loan facility of up to HK$390,000,000 (the
“Second Facility”), an event of default arises if The Blackstone Group L.P.
ceases to be the largest ultimate shareholder of the Company.

As announced jointly by the Company and HNA Finance | Co., ld. ["HNA
Finance 1") in announcement dated 19 April 2016, Tides Holdings Il Lid.
("Tides Holdings 11"} will enter into an agreement with HNA Finance | in
connection with the sale by Tides Holdings Il of 577,279,496 Shares,
(representing approximately ¢6% of the issued Shares), as a result of which
Tides Holdings Il will remain interested in 78,719,931 Shares (representing
approximately 9% of the issued Shares) (the “Tides Transaction”). The
Company has been informed that HNA Finance | intends to complete the
Tides Transaction on 30 June 2016. Tides Holdings Il is ultimately held by
The Blackstone Group L.P. and upon completion of the Tides Transaction, The
Blackstone Group L.P. will cease 1o hold at least 60% of the Shares and be
the largest ultimate shareholder of the Company. The Company sought and
obtained, in the case of the First Facility, consent from the syndicate of banks
and financial insfitufions and, in the case of the Second Facility, consent from
the bank, to the Tides Transaction.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's fotal number of
issued shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Defails of the significant events of the Group dfter the reporting period are set
out in note 43 o the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Emst & Young refire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the

ARRREMORER  BRAEER 2’ Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
RBFARGLRE -

AESR® BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

IFRE Wang Tianbing

TFE Chairman

BB Hong Kong

“ZE-RERNAZTNE 29 June 2016
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W 5 B ¥ B 3t J INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the shareholders of Tysan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tysan Holdings
188,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement
consolidated sfatement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement

Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on pages 67 to
of profit or loss, the

of changes in equity and the consolidated sfatement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal confrol as the
directors defermine is necessary fo enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with secfion 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

fo any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4 2015/2016
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY(Cont'd)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal confrol relevant fo the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order fo
design audit procedures that are appropriafe in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecfiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriafe to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair view
of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 March
2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

29 June 2016
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55 & # 38 & CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

i3

Notes

REVENUE 5
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Other income and gains, nef 5
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Changes in fair value of

investment properties 14
Other expenses, nef
Finance costs 6

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7
Income tax expense 10

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable fo:
Ordinary equity holders
of the Company
Non-controlling inferests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY 12

Basic

Diluted

Year ended 31 March 2016 HEZT—AF=A=+—HIFE

—E-RE —T—HF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
4,057,316 4,836,413
(3,132,343) (3,977,313
924,973 859,100
146,411 42,319
(50,767) (42,431)
(54,627) (46,889)
32,390 33,121
(35,047) (7,303
(11,496) (14,706)
951,837 823,211
(439,329) (317,045)
512,508 506,166
396,874 399,394
115,634 106,772
512,508 506,166

HK45.37 cents &4l HK45.66 cents 711l

N/A FEA N/A TEH

% 2015/2016 ' 67
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5% A 2 i B 2 F# CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 March 2016 BEZT—AF=A=+—HIFE
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/(EXPENSES)

Other comprehensive income/ expenses)
fo be reclassified fo profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange difference on translation
of foreign operations

Release of exchange difference upon
disposal of subsidiaries

Release of exchange difference upon
liquidation of a subsidiary

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable fo:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling inferests

—EBE-RE —ZE—HE
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
512,508 506,166
(107,381 851
(36,527) —
(500) (7,492)
(144,408) (6,641]
368,100 499 525
252,466 394,550
115,634 104,975
368,100 499 525




FRBEE

WE - BERRE
REMF
BRTPYE

BNFE - 7l R EMEKTIA

pbIL NG 5
Hit&E
AfHERE
TEERMTA
EERAEE

BIERBEE

RBEE

BRTPYE

(e

RAHRHEZMFE
EPEBANIRZRR
FEUWE B S AR E &

BNFR - 712 M EMRYGEIR

bt G
RRHRE
Re RRTER

BRBEE
RBEE

ENE SRR RN RE S K

FER A
HiENHR - BRI &K
FRUWRIR
REFAEBAEN IR A
BWETE

M BIRITIEE

FENHA

BREAME
RBEEFE

REERRBERE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Properties under development

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Interests in an associate

Other assets

Availablefor-sale investment

Derivative financial instrument

Deferred fax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Properties under development
Inventories

Properties held for sale

Amounts due from customers for contract works

Trade and refention receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Tax prepaid

Time deposits

Resfricted cash

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and retention payables
and accruals

Other payables, deposits received and
receipls in advance

Amounts due to cusfomers for confract works

Deposits received

Interestbearing bank borrowings

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

[ ]
R B R AR A

4 W% R B CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

B —ZEBE—AE —ZE—AF
Notes 2016 2015
FHET FAET

HK$000 HK$ 000

13 333,405 391,967
14 172,636 o317
15 — 1,210,048
27 1,386 1,918
16 — =
1,350 1,350

17 1,197 1,249
23 8,533 ==
29 49,133 55,829
567,640 2,280,678

15 1,772,959 65,506
18 23,551 14,182
19 302,596 646,659
20 116,625 160,041
21 727,243 1,016,641
22 283,542 70,490
7,480 2178

24 1,303,589 746,432
24 — 24,000
24 502,830 541,064
5,040,415 3,287,190

25 634,734 923,682
26 40,155 56,658
20 660,898 686,495
27 214,233 110,378
28 198,568 143,278
279,206 266,870
2,027,794 2,187,361
3,012,621 1,099,829
3,580,261 3,380,507
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548 W% R B # CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

Kt —E-RE —T-hfF

Nofes 2016 2015
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
HEERREEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,580,261 3,380,507
FREBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
JEETHE Accrual 25 4,387 =
fERITHEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 28 658,378 224,621
EEBIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 140,304 223,317
BIERBAE Total non-current liabilities 803,069 447 938
BESE Net assets 2,777,192  2932,569
R EQUITY
ARAVE B Equity atiributable to ordinary equity holders
e of the Company
BEBITREAR Issued capital 30 87,466 87,466
M Reserves 32 2,600,937 2,654,608
2,688,403 2,742,074
e e T Non-confrolling inferests 88,789 190,495
fEikEm Total equity 2,777,192  2932,569
= e
FUNG CHIU CHAK VICTOR LAU KIN FAI
EZ EZE
Director Director
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554 B 35 % ) #& CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-Z—XR&E=A=1+—HILEE

RARERRRREA ISR
Aitutcble fo orcary equi holdersof e Company

il Ed R
BET  EEE it xR
e Soe  HABR  EEER Do 2 Norr g
i bwed  pemion  Conitbied  Soioy  fuchcion  Refaned &t conioling Toil
Noks wpid  accounl wpls e e profs Tol — inress equiy
Tir T A TR TEr TEr TEr TEm TEn
HSOM  HE00 HSOM HSOD A0 HSO A0 MO A
(Hk30)
[note 32)
At 1 Aoil 2014 87466 563861 - 5000 23993 1385630 2481970 20307 271277
Profitforthe year by - - . - 30304 309304 106772 506166
Oer comprehiense incoe/fexpenses
for e year:
Bxchonge dference on nslfon
of foreign operafons = = = = 863 = 863 1 851
Relecse of exchange diference
upon iquideion of o subsiciary = - = 5 (5,707) = (5,707) (1783 7492
Tool comprehensive income/fexpenses|
for fhe yeor - - = = {844 399304 304550 104975 499525
Disposal of subsiores 3%) = = = = = = = (2783 2783)
Acapisfion of addiional imerest n o subsidory 38 = = = = = (3246 (3248 (11754 (15000
Dividends paid fo nomconfioling ineress = = = = = = - 19250 (129,250
2014finol dvidend declored ond paid
I - - - - - 7467 B7467) - [67467)
2015 irerim dhidend paid i = = = = = 3733 43733 = (43,733)
Tondlr fom retined proffs,nef = = = 28766 = (28,760] = — =
At 31 March 2013 §7466 963861 =1 B8l 20t 180812 2742074 190495 2932569
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5% A WE %2 % B) 3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2016 BE=-ZT—"E=A=1+—HIFE

iz
Notes
R-E-75MA-A At 1 Apil 2015
g Prof for e year
EhERRENE/(FR): Oer comprehiense ncome/fexpenses
fo the year:
agRNGEEE Bxchangs diference on inglon
LEiER offoreign operans
RHBAALERER Pelease of excongs diference
EizE upon dsposals of subscres 3
il Pelease of excongs diference
EiZE upon iquideion of o subsiciay
ERRNE/ (Rx) 8% Tolol comprehensive income/fexpenses|
for e year
RITFARRREARS Dividends poid fo nonconfling eres's

BE-RRRER RS Repaymentof  loan fo @ norconfoling e
ZE-DECERRERZABRE 2015 fol diidend decored ond paid Il
i RGP 2016 irterim dhidend poid Il
ERza R Transerfo conbed suplst

A

2
7\

i liguidaion of subsidirs

RIB-E=A=1-B At 31 March 2016

Y RERRBRBEEERNEAMBRRKR &
B i## 26009370008 T (ZE—R%F:
2,654,608,000%7T) °

# BREARAR-_T-AFNHALHBETZR
RBFRE LABRBRHIAER  ARAR
—T-AFNAERZBROEERZ 2 HE
REETAEHE  LRaELRESET
BARRRIHARRE -
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RTRERRRRATIRE

Afributoble fo ordinery equit holders of fre Company

Rt EX R

B3 AER e Rxgs
e Soe  HARR  EERE  Ddoge  REEH Non 88
lsed  pemum  Conrbued  Stooy  fuctafon  Refoined it conoling Totol
copil  occountswplis resenes resene prof Tool  inferests equiy
tht Tt T T TE FE Tt TR T
HS000 HKSO0 SO0 HKSO0D AKSODD RSO HKSODO HKSO0 RSO0

(IiE32)
[note 32)

87466 963861 5 3816 WN9 182812 2742074 190495 2932569
= = = = - N4 396874 115634 512,508
2 - - R - (o) - (o)
- 2 - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - (144408 390874 252466 115634 368,100
- - - - - - -0 (185107
- - - - - - - [000 2000
- - - - -0 32 -3
- - - - S (74 -
SR . . . . - -
- - W - - W m m
§7 466 =t Se3gert 331 0710F 1912553 2688403 86789 277719

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,600,937,000 (2015: HK$2,654,608,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Pursuant fo a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the

Company held on 7 August 2015, the entire amount standing to the credit of

share premium account of the Company as at 7 August 2015 was cancelled,

and the corresponding balance arising therefrom was credited fo the contributed

surplus account of the Company.
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34 B 4 W B F CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2016 HEZT—A"F=A=+—HIFE

fist —B-RE ZT-HF
Notes 2016 2015
FHET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 951,837 823,211
Adjustments for:
Finance costs 6 11,496 14,706
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries, net 7 (112,852 790
Interest income 3 (15,546) (26,211)
Loss on disposal and write-off of items
of property, plant and equipment 7 2,904 180
loss on disposal of an invesiment property / = 161
Depreciation 7 79,953 78913
Fair value gains on derivative
financial instruments 7 (5,302) (229)
Changes in fair value of investment properties 7 (32,390) (33,121)
Impairment of items of propery,
plant and equipment 7 - 2,000
Impairment of frade receivables 7 4 387
Impairment of other receivables 7 99 1,069
Impairment of an amount due from an associate 7 11 14
880,214 861,870
Decrease in properties under development and
properties held for sale, net (261,878)  (168,245)
Decrease in inventories (9,378) (573)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
customers for contract works 43,416 [59,771)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
refention receivables 289,394 (243,850)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables 3,350 4,848
Increase/(decrease] in trade and refention
payables and accruals (284,087) 293,128
Increase/[decrease] in other payables,
deposits received and receipts in advance (9,455) 19,234
Decrease in amounts due fo customers
for contract works (25,597) [52,545)
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received 103,855 [90,189)
Cash generated from operations 729,834 563,907
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A B4 W ®FE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 March 2016 B#E=—ZT—F=A=1+—HI-FE

Wi  ZB-A"E —T-5%

Notes 2016 2015

FHET TIET

HK$'000 HK$000

RELEXBK 2R Cash generated from operations 729,834 563,907
B EARLNE Taxes paid in the People’s Republic of China

(TREL)BER - (ihe "PRC"):

BB Hong Kong (28,126) (9,717)

Hihi R Elsewhere (377,445)  (200,803)
ERENEGIA Taxes refunded in the PRC:

BB Hong Kong 2,111 579
HNEEXEE B  FR Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes, net 6,974 209
REREEBZREREFR Net cash flows from operating acfivities 333,348 354,175
REREXB2RERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EHFLE Interest received 15,546 26,211
BAYE  BENREBER Purchases of items of property,

plant and equipment (29,537) (77.875)
WEEmR - R hREER Deposits paid for acquisition of items of property,

RANEEA plant and equipment 22 — (717)
REREME Additions fo investment properties - (54,949)
HEME - BB NRERA Proceeds on disposal of items of property,

PR plant and equipment 5,602 4,735
HE—BREYMEMEIR Proceeds on disposal of an investment property - 2,080
WM B AR 2 BIMER Proceeds on acquisition of additional interest

PS8 in a subsidiary 38 - (15,000
HEMB AR Disposal of subsidiaries 39 250,082 25,856
—[RIBE A R] 2 REIEM Increase in an amount due from an associate (11) (14)
IR RER=EAK Decrease/lincrease) in non-pledged time

BHR 7 AR TE BT R deposits with original maturity of

"L,/ () more than three months when acquired (42,603) 137,485
ZRFAERD,(3Em) Decrease/(increase] in restricted cash 24,000 (20,759)
REREXBZREREFH Net cash flows from investing activities 223,079 27,053
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34 B 4 W B F CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 March 2016 &%

sz
Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inferest paid on bank borrowings
New bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of a loan to a noncontrolling inferest
Return of capital to a non-controlling interest

upon liquidation of a subsidiary

Dividends paid to non-ontrolling interests

Dividends paid
Net cash flows used in financing acfivities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Fffect of foreign exchange rate changes, nef

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 24
Non-pledged time deposits 24

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated sfatement of financial position
less: Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of over three months
when acquired 24

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated sfatement of cash flows

B AFZA=+—RALEE

—E—RE —E—AF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
(16,547)  (18,699)
690,455 284,000
(202,157)  [502,641]
(32,000) (L
(233) X
(185,107)  (129,250)
(306,133) (131,200)
(51,722)  (497,790)
504,705 (116,562)
1,287,496 1,410,422
(28,385) 16,364)
1,763,816 1,287,496
502,830 541,064
1,303,589 746,432
1,806,419 1,287,496
(42,603) -
1,763,816 1,287,496
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

1.

RNEREEER

FAKEZERERLRS—ANBRE
MR BRAR

KR A2t # = 5% £z R Clarendon
House, 2 Church Streef, Hamilion HM 11,
Bermuda © AR B2 EBE B NE
BEMITEEE 25 One Island South 20
*; °

REFEAR  AEELETIEEE
7%

WESTE MBS
MERR
MERENERE

KA Z & 2 7 BTides Holdings |l
lid.  Tides Holdings II Lid. 7 288 5 2 B¥
S(EBRZHS )FMKL - KAT]
ZHEEFERR 2 8] 4 The Blackstone Group
LP. EBRORANZESF I HH LT -
B35 A& 2 A] EHNA Finance | Co., lid.
(THNA Finance I ;T Z BB/ = &
—RNFOHATARNBERAE(HE R
£ 1) » Tides Holdings I lid. B &R =
AHNA Finance |1 & &2 8 66% B %
TR - ZEHEE—FPHBEER
BRI 43(a) ©
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Streef, Hamilion HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

e foundation piling and site invesfigation
*  property development

O property investment and management

The holding company of the Company is Tides Holdings Il ltd., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands {“BVI) and ultimately
controlled by The Blackstone Group L.P., which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. Pursuant fo a joint announcement made by the
Company and HNA Finance | Co., lid. ("HNA Finance I’) dated 19
April 2016 {'Joint Announcement”), Tides Holdings II Ltd. conditionally
agreed fo sell its 66% inferest in the issued shares of the Company to
HNA Finance |. Further detfails of this event are set out in note 43(a) to
the financial stafements.
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BTE 1 AT E#

ARAEEMNBRARINFENT

2R

Name

FAWE(BE)BRAT
(IRABE(FE)])

Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong] Limited
["TFHK")

RAMETRR(FE)ERAA
(Hrz1)

Tysan Conractors (Hong Kong| Limited
fnofe 1)

FARE(RM)ERAR (M2 ])
Tysan Construction (Macau) Limited
fnofe 1)

FAMETRBRRRA(ME 1 K2)

Tysan Foundation limited frofes 7 and 2)

FRWEL NTRARDAME])
Tysan Foundation Geotechnical Limited
[nofe 1)

R B R AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information about subsidiaries

Bilhye
B3
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

B
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

AP

Macau

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

BETRG,/
HREMER
Issued share/
paid-up
registered capital

ERR 10078
Ordinary HK$100

TR 2B T
Ordinary HK$2

AR 25,0008
Ordinary MOP25,000

i@k 141,000,00087T
Ordinary HK$141,000,000
EAEAR 3,000,000 7T
DeferredHK$3,000,000

LBk 10,000,00087
Ordinary HK$10,000,000

NGl
ZBEEDL

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of equity

aftributable to
the Company

FREH

Principal activities

“E-NE —EB-3fF

2016

60

60

60

60

60

2015

60 REER
Investment

holding

60 ERERUR
BRAtFR A R B R
Project

management

and provision

of consuliancy

and management

services

60 HAEITHE

Foundation
piling

60 HEITER
HEHE

Foundation

piling and site
investigation

60 EATER
EHE

Foundation

piling and site
investigation

F% 2015/2016 77
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2R ZZ-hfF

1. RAREEERGE) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEZMBRRINFENT : () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Contd)
BiAye
afMkEF LR BRITRE/ NG )3
Place of BREMER ZREBDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ ~ Percentage of equity

£8 registration paid-up attributable to ITEEH
Name and business registered capifal the Company Principal activifies

2016 2015

RAUNBEBRDA(MZ 1 K2) ) L&A 10,00047T 60 60 KREE

Tysan Machinery Hire limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Machinery hiring
(nofes I and 2) TR 200,000 T
Deferred HK$200,000

FEMMIRBRARMEZ]) B8 TEik24,480,000%7T 100 100 HRBEREE

Proficiency Equipment Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong ~ Ordinary HK$24,480,000 Machinery

hiring and

frading

FETREEERARME ) 6 TER2AT 100 100 RETERRER

Proficiency Engineering Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 K E

Provision of

engineering

services and

machinery hiring

BIRBRARMZ]) BE LTER2ET 100 100 KHBERER

Lion Bright Limited fnofe 1/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Machinery

hiring and

frading

ERBBRRR ML) R LEAR 25 000RM T 100 100 R TI2MRA%

Mac Proficiency limited frofe 7/ Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 LkmEE

Provision of

engineering

services and

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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RAREBER (F) le
BB 1A EH ()
ARBAEEMNBRRINFENT : (&)
(Contd]
Bl hye
afkEF LR BRIRG/
Place of HREMER
incorporation/ Issued share/
A registration paid-up
Name and business registered capital

FRERERRAR(M:Z2) &E
Tysan Management Limited fnofe 2) Hong Kong
SRARAA &
Great Unison Limited Hong Kong
FAREERBRAA &
Tysan Invesiment Limited Hong Kong
FAREBRAA &b
Tysan Construction Company limited Hong Kong
Cotioniree Pacific Limited* RBRAEE
BVI
Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited* (422 1) BRE
fnote 1) Bermuda
FRAMEXRREBRLA &
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong
& Investment limited
EGREBRRARM:Z]) &b
Sure Faith Investment Limited /nofe 7/ Hong Kong

LRI 16,720,850 7T
Ordinary HK$ 16,720,850
B 2B T

Deferred HK$2

LRI AT

Ordinary HK$1

TR 2T
Ordinary HK$2

LR 2ET
Ordinary HK$2

TR BT
Ordinary HK$1

EEATO0.1 787
Ordinary HK$0.1

TR 2T
Ordinary HK$2

EER2BT
Ordinary HK$2

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

NG
ZBEEDL
Percentage of equity
atiributable to TEEH
the Company Principal activities
“B-~F ZF-0F
2016 2015
100 100 txER
Corporate
management
100 100 TPRRBE
Corporate
financing
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 ESERES
Property
holding

F% 2015/2016 79
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80

1. RAREEERGE) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEZMBRRINFENT : () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
BV
AR EXLH ERTRG,/ ERAEE
Place of BEEMER ZREEDL
incorporation/ Issued share/  Percentage of equity
5 registration paid-up attributable to TEEH
Name and business registered capifal the Company Principal activifies
-5 —ZT-1F
2016 2015
EREHWERRARMZ ) BB LER2BT 100 100 RERR
Duncan Properties Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
Dragonhill Limited (7% 7) BiE LEREL 100 100 REER
fnoe 1) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
BEERARRRAMZ ) BiE LR 10087 100 100 RERR
CG [HY) Intemational Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Investment
holding
LEEERREER RS TE/ SRR 5,000,000%7 - 100 VESIE
BRAR( EEER ) PRC/ US$5,000,000 Property
(138 10) Mainland China invesiment
Shanghai China Garden Infemational
Real Estate Development & Management
Company Limited ("Shanghai China
Garden")* fnotes 1, 3 and 10)
lronwood Pacific Limited* (7% 7) SBRAHS L@k 100%T 100 100 RERR
fnote ]) BV Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
BRREERAR(ERRE ) &R EER2AT - 100 WERE
(Bt 1 %9) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property
Hiat Investment Limited |"Hiat Investment”)* investment
fnotes 1 and 9)
Beneficial Enterprises Limited* (z# 1) RBRAES LER100%T 100 100 RARR
fnofe 1) BV Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
BRATRERARME]) &b EBR2ET 100 100 RARR
Fund House Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment
holding

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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REAIREEER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Contd)

BB 2 A EH ()
ARREEMBARNFHBNT : (£)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]
Bl Ve
afkEF LR BRfTRG/ NG
Place of HREMER ZREBDL
incorporation/ Issued share/  Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEEH
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
“B-~F ZF-0F
2016 2015
BEMEER (L) ARAF i,/ 500,000%7t 100 100 NEER
(W 1R3) HE R US$500,000 Property
Duncan Property Management [Shanghail PRC/ management
Company Limited* fnofes 1 and 3/ Mainland China
Allbright Investment Limited* (#7z# 1) RBRAES @R 100 100 100 RERR
fnote ]) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
AABRERRRAMZ ) & EER2ET 100 100 RERR
Red Shine Invesiment Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
Federated Resources Limited* (#s# 1) RBRAES LER100ET 100 100 RERR
fnote ]) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment
holding
ENBARRA L] & EER2ET 100 100 RERR
Carriway Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
HEREEERHESRERRR i,/ AR 200,0007 100 100 VESS
(ffE] ~ 3 5k6) B A RMB200,000 Property
Shanghai Changning Duncan Property PRC/ consulfing
Consulling Company Limited* Mainland China

fnotes 1, 3, 5 and 6)
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“E-~F ZT-1%

1. RAREEERGE) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 2 e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEZMBRRINFENT : () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Contd)
BiAye
afMkEF LR BRITRE/ NG )3
Place of BREMER ZREBDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ ~ Percentage of equity

£8 registration paid-up attributable to ITEEH
Name and business registered capifal the Company Principal activifies

2016 2015

REREERDRAMT ) BB EER2ET 100 100 RERRIE R4

Great Regent Invesiments Limited (nofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 HE R RS

Investment holding

and provision of

sales and

markefing services

ZARWE (L&) FRAR i,/ 1,000,000 7T 100 100 NEER

Bzl - 4k7) hE R US$1,000,000 Property

Tysan land (Shanghai) Limited * PRC/ development
fnotes 1, 4 and /) Mainland China

BRBERAT(ME 1) B LR 10087 100 100 RERRA A

Great Prosper Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 HEREHRE

Investment holding

and provision of

sales and

marketing services

FRARHERE(RE)RRAR i,/ 15,500,000% 7T 100 100 MERER

(FiE 1R 3) B A US$15,500,000 Property

Tysan Property Development (Tianjin| PRC/ development
Company Limited*/nofes 7 and 3) Mainland China

REBRRA(MZ 1) &R LR 10,0007% 7T 100 100 RERR

Sparkle Key Limited fnofe 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary Investment

HK$10,000 holding

ZAFNECEG)BRAA* hE/ 108,300,000% 7T 100 100 NERER

(Wit 1 3R8) hElR, US$108,300,000 Property

Tysan Land (Shenyang) Limited* PRC/ development
fnotes 1, 3 and 8) Mainland China

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Nofes:

1.

2.

Held through subsidiaries.

The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed non-
cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year
during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
exceeds HK$ 1 billion|, no rights fo vote at general meetings, no rights to
receive any surplus on a return of capital on a windingup (other than the
amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the ordinary
shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-up of a
sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share).

These entities are registered as whollyforeign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

This entity is registered as an Sinoforeign joint venture under the PRC
low.

The name of this enfity was changed from “Shanghai Changning Duncan
Property Development Company Llimited” to “Shanghai Changning
Duncan Property Consulting Company Limited" with effect from 10 August
2015.

The registered capital of this entity decreased from US$10,000,000 to
RMB200,000 in September 2015.

The registered capital of this entity decreased from US$20,500,000 to
US$1,000,000 in July 2015

In April 2015, the increase of registered capital of this entity from
US$58,300,000 to US$108,300,000 was approved by the relevant

govemment authority and the amount was paid in November 2015.

On 11 December 2015, the Group disposed of ifs entire inferests in Hiat
Investment. Further defails of the disposal are set out in note 39a) o the
financial statements.

On 1 February 2016, the Group disposed of its entire interests in
Shanghai China Garden. Further defails of the disposal are set out in
note 39(b) to the financial statements.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ermst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Emst & Young
global network.

£ 2015/2016
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assefs of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties and derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and
all values are rounded fo the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the
"Group'| for the year ended 31 March 2016. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from ifs involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee |i.e.,
exisfing rights that give the Group the current ability fo direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

[a)  the confractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confractual arrangements; and

[c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Contd

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consisfent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains confrol, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
atiributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company and to the
non-confrolling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating fo transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises |i] the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, i) the carying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises [i] the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or refained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

£ 2015/2016
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20102012 Cycle

Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
relating to the disclosure of financial information with reference to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current
financial year. The main impact fo the financial stafements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in the financial
statements.



[ ]
R B R AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

2.3 CHEMEBREMZEBUBRE 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
Z£8| FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AEBHARTHHHRRERAUATER
B RER AT R ER] BB R

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HAER o

BRI HRE BETA? HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
ZRIE Q5

BANBREER REEZRERE Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
FI10HRREE RElgEE and HKAS 28 (2011} between an Investor
SEERIE 28 57 PEZREZ and its Associate
(ZF—%F) BEHE or Joint Venture’
ZIEET HEES

BEVBMEELN REFE: Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
F10REER Vi diin=yd=l HKFRS 12 and the Consolidation Exception’
B TR EZER ZBIMER ! HKAS 28 (2011)
FBI2HRRES
SETERIE 28 97
(ZF——%F)
ZIEET

BAMBRELEN UEHEKE Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
F£11R2ER] B &ih%! of Inferests in Joint Operations'

BERNBRS EHELKE HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
RIS 1457

BRI HRE EFE#Z W2 HKFRS 15 Revenuve from Contracts
ZEBRIZE 155 with Customers?

BRI HRE HE? HKFRS 16 leases®

HERIE 1657

4 2015/2016
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’
Amendments fo HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number
20122014 Cycle of HKFRSs!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2016

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2019

4 Effective for an enfity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or affer 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

No mandatory effective date is defermined but is available for early
adoption
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration fo which an
entity expecs to be enfifled in exchange for transferring goods or
services fo a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also infroduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of tofal revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs.

Amendments to HKAS 1

the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. The amendments

clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

include narrow-focus improvements in respect of

(i) that specific line ifems in the statement of profit or loss and the
statement of financial position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entifies have flexibility as to the order in which they present
the notes to financial statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must
be presented in aggregate in a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when
additional subfofals are presented in the statement of financial position
and the stafement of profit or loss. The Group expects fo adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2016. The amendments are not expected fo

have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associafe is an entity in which the Group has a long term inferest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position fo exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's inferests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
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income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from fransactions between the Group and ifs associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
fransferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any refained investment at ifs fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and

proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair valve measurement

The Group measures its invesiment properties and derivative financial
instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid fo fransfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the fransaction fo sell the asset or fransfer the liability
fakes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that markef participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best inferest.

A fair value measurement of a nondinancial asset fakes info account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in ifs highest and besf use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in ifs highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair valve measurement [Cont'd)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
o the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1 —based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2 - based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

level 3 —based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required [other than investment properties,
properties under development, properties held for sale, inventories,
consfruction contract assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the assef's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an individual
asset, unless the assef does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
fo which the assef belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the esfimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific fo the assef. An impairment loss is charged
fo the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense cafegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used fo determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been defermined [nef of any depreciation/
amortisation] had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 FEESTHEERBEE) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)
BEA L Related parties
ETIERT - -7 B RARE A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:
BzREAL
(o) ZAR—BALTHZALZEE [a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
HZAL and that person
(i) s KRR HIAEE [l  has control or joint control over the Group;
i) HAREEBEATE 5 (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
i) BAKREHIANEEEQF (i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
ZETBRERABHED—F Group or of a parent of the Group;
KB
x or
b &7 ARMNE THIER—EGEEZ (b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
R applies:

BAKEBR % i} the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

R
N
=
il
£
ﬂ‘

i) —EBRARZ—EEB (‘Jij— (i) one entily is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
ERZBRE WER (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
[/ R ED\T)ZH#%A entity);
ARARERE

il ZEREAEERFR-—% (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
=hZaErE: party;

94  ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016



2.4 FESTBRBER(E)

EFEAN L (&)
bl  ZABFETINERN—BEEE 2
TR (&)
vy —BRAFZF=FB®B2E
BhENZ—ERAE=
HERZHERF
Vv ZEEBAAEER—FRH
REEEHE L ERME
EREFMIKNERRE
FErEl
(vi) &a%x@ﬁhAi?ﬂ

(vii)

(viii)

HRZH

()| TR AT HEEREEXR
,ﬁiEJE(%%E%
RANEBEEBABMNE
H—RKE Rk
ZERYUZERMESE
ZEMKE AR BAREER
FAEBE 2 RARREE
ZEEABRE -

R B AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —ZE—X"F=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Related parties (Cont'd)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Contd

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

one entity is a joint venture of a

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related fo the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over
the entity or is @ member of the key management personnel

the entity):; and

of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or fo the parent of the Group.
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(Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets fo its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after ifems of property,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
mainfenance, is normally charged fo the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are safisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capifalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assefs with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

leasehold land under finance lease Over the lease ferms

Buildings 5%
Equipment and machinery 10% - 33V, %
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

10% - 33V, %

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
inifially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of invesiment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the sfatement of profit or loss in the year of
the refirement or disposal.

For a fransfer from inventories fo investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are sfated at cost less any impairment
losses, which include all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other cosfs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been presold or which
are intended for sale and are expected fo be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current asses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs aftributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.

leases

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, fo
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a consfant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the stafement of
profit or loss on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms.

Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straightline basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assefs are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
forsale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assefs
are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction
cosfs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits fo purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective

hedging insfruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position af fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies sef out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are safisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related 1o those of the host confracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the ferms
of the confract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assefs with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Contd

Availablefor-sale financial investments

Availablefor-sale financial investments are nonderivative financial assets
in unlisted equity invesiments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other income, or unfil the investment is determined
fo be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the availableforsale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends eamed
whilst holding the available-forsale financial invesiments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies sef out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value esfimates is significant for that invesiment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in esfimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Availablefor-sale financial investments (Cont'd)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-
forsale financial assefs in the near ferm are still appropriate. VWhen, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable to frade these financial assets
due fo inactive markets, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial
assefs if management has the ability and infention fo hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial assef reclassified from the available-forsale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the invesiment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified o the statement of profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assefs that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit losses that have not
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted af the financial assef's original effective interest rate |i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rafe of inferest used fo discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
fogether with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been fransferred fo the Group.

If. in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusfing the allowance account. If a write-
off is lafer recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Availablefor-sale financial investments

For availableforsale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost [nef of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulafive loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisiion cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

"

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised |i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation fo pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

When the Group has fransferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from an
assef or has enfered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group confinues to recognise the fransferred asset fo the extent of the
Group's confinuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the assef and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

Al financial liabiliies are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly affributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and refention payables,
inerestbearing bank borrowings and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After inifial recognition, inferestbearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured ot amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rafe amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rafe amortisation is included
in finance costs in the sfatement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Financial liabilities (Contd)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair value, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different ferms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the stafement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right fo offsef the recognised amounts and there is an
infention fo settle on a net basis, or fo realise the assefs and setile the
liabilities simultaneously.
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(Contd)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rafe swaps, to hedge ifs foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivafive confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value s
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
current and non-current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows|.

*  Where the Group expecis to hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current [or separated info current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

e Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host
confract.

*  Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are seporoted info current portions and non-current

portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete
or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
of the

proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees eamed, measured by
fofal cost of the

the proportion of costs incurred fo date to the esfimated

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a contract cusfomer.

Where progress billings exceed contract cosfs incurred to dafe plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to a contract customer.

£ 2015/2016

109



[ )
.'H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

110

2.4 FESFTBRBIE(E)

HERERMEELER

RERRERERME RENFRR
2HABRT LR EHER - UK
ARKEZ BEF 2 RB B (—RA
—EARKBHRAREHERE N
HHIEAZBEESRR 2 EHSE
MBIRERE - MRANEREEEL
RAGBEZREER 2 TBED ZRIT
BEX e

RESMBMRAERME - Re MR1TAE
FEERZTZRHZFERRITH
& BREHER -

1

WB Az REEE(BIREERERE) =
AR —LRECEEZEMHME - A
AR AR B ERFERLAIEE &%
Eff AREAzcBERIAER
At RleRER R -

ENEVEEAR  piEEMHEIZE
BRNBREHMRBAFTREBTEZER
ZARRXHZBE - BEEREMEMNZ
REZEFTRSEFTABRRRZBEK
ZNAK

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—R"E=A=1+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are nof resfricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required fo seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance costs in the stafement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income fax relating fo
items recognised outside stafement of profit or loss is recognised, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current fox assefs and liabiliies are measured af the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid fo the faxation authorities, based on fax
rates (and fax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all tfemporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

®  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the femporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the tfemporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax [Cont'd)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused fax losses can be utilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax assef relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, af the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available o allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset o be ufilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised o the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
faxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists 1o set off current tax assefs against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

[c]

(d)

(e)

(9)

From foundation piling, site investigation and electrical and
mechanical ("E&M”) engineering contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

From the sale of properies held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been

fransferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease terms;

From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rafe that exactly discounts the esfimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

Dividend income

When shareholder’s right to receive payment has been

established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
o the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
insiruments {“equity-sefiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-sefiled fransactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-setiled fransactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, fogether with a corresponding increase in equily, over the
period in which the performance and/or service condifions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-sefled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
fo which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best esfimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit fo the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as af the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not faken into
account when defermining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions aftached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered fo be non-vesting
condifions. Non-vesfing conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead fo an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont'd)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is
recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condifion,
the transactions are freated as vesfing imespective of whether the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or conditions are satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-seffled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial o the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-sefiled award is cancelled, it is freated as if it had
vesfted on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where nonwesfing conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are freated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and ufilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave eamed during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund’)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
became payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
ongoing confributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured ifs
relirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
parficipated in an opproved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
confributions vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo parficipate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a cerfain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the sfatement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income eamed on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capifalised.
All other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial stafements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective funcfional currency rates prevailing af the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are franslated af the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling af the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of hisforical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates af the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured af fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

£ 2015/2016

117



[ )
.'H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

118

2.4 FTESFTBRBIE(E)

S (')

HTEINMBARZNREEEBETTIA
SNZEH  RREMK  ZFERBZE
ERAENRRENRER EXRE
RBTT s HRaERAEAFE 2 IEF
HERBE LSBT - AUmEEZER
EEN A2 EREER RN ER TS
FBRE - HENEERE - FRZE
BEINEEH Bt 2m B #ED - 5
MR R AR °

RERHEERERME - BINIBEAF
ZBEREDNHRASREE B ZE
KPE R - MEINHBLRRRER
RELR B RERAR RIAFAZM
BT EXBESER o

EXRSETHE R fhET

ERBAEE G BRE - EEER
BBERER HARZBHLEMER
TR NRIHET R AhRT  ATRE S 4R 75
HRAER L CEBREATE 25t
TRAPRZZ T E2RRREMAT

FEWE G IR RAREZ R 1E

AEEZ RREZEFMRERER
RIVBE AR A < TR ERRE R Rk
ATARIRE R 2 HIEMETE 77
e FRMFIAZ &R BHIFNE » B
EERRAREZHE - £EFEEA
EFRRZEERBEZREES -
AEEEP ZMBAMREE - BHRE
ZIEREETRSS - AIRIEHBRIME S o

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

The functional currencies of cerfain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars af the exchange rates prevailing af the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relafing fo that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated sfatement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and esfimates based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade and retention receivables

The policy for impairment of trade and retention receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis
of frade and refention receivables and on management's judgement.
Significant judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection hisfory of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were fo deteriorate, resulfing in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional provisions may be required.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual confract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of complefion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers af the
end of the reporting period. These estimates are based on acfual cost
incurred over the total budgefed cost. Corresponding confract revenue
is also estimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered into and the date when the acfivity is completed
usually fall info different accounting periods. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both confract revenue and confract costs in
the budget prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses.

Estimation of fotal budgeted costs and cost fo completion for
construction works

Total budgeted costs for consfruction works comprise (i direct
material costs and direct labour, (i) costs of subcontracting, and {iii)
an appropriation of variable and fixed construction and services
overheads. In esfimating the tofal budgeted costs for construction
works, management makes reference to information such as (i) current
offers from subcontractors and suppliers, (i) recent offers agreed with
subcontractors and suppliers, and [iii) professional esfimates on material
costs, labour costs and other costs.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for fax and the fiming of payment of the related taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax defermination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes ("LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 0% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business faxes and all property development
expenditures. The fax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China. The Group has not yet finalised its LAT calculation and payments
for most of its property development projects with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates. Where the final
fax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which such determination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according fo the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Operating segments are reported
in @ manner consistent with internal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

[a) the foundation piling segment (including site investigation
operation};

(b)  the property development segment;
[c]  the property invesiment and management segment; and

(d)  the “corporate and others” segment comprises, principally, the
Group's corporafe operation, machinery leasing and frading,
and E&M engineering businesses.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure
of adjusted profit/loss before tax.

The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, and fair value gains/losses from the Group's

financial instruments are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude derivative financial instrument, deferred tax
assefs, fax prepaid and time deposits as these assels are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabiliies are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties af the then prevailing
market prices.

£ 2015/2016
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31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

4.

LA 2

reEsEEN(E)
HETEEH

(o) ZREIEEFUZE

NE - Segment revenue:
HEFMEEE  Sales to extemal customers

LS ERARFRELE R

Bt

b) FrEEE

LIRS EENEEMENE
RERBIBRECRARE -
BH—EFEEFZEHN

Y#491,130,196,0008T(ZF -5
F 1 662,183,000 7T) J3%K B E4T
BOER—RE-FPEHIHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Geographical information
(@)  Revenue from external customers
B ol HEAHE &e
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
ZE-xE 2R ZE-3E “E-1F CZE-E CT-RF ZE-nE CE-Rf
2016 2015 216 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
HS000 SO0 HKSO00  HEO00 HKSO00 K000 HESO0 K000
3,053,602 3,507,933 17573 34695 986,141 1003785 4057316 4836413
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
customers.
(b)  Non-current assets
B il HEAMHE &4
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
ZE-nE 3R 2B CE-RF ZE-RE CE-RF ZE-nE CE-RE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
FEr FEr FEr FEr F&r FEr F&r &
HS000 SO0 HKS000 SO0 HKSO00 K000 KRS0 HKSO00
336,734 388,601 - 108 181773 1836140 518507 2,224 849

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$1,130,196,000 (2015:

HK$662,183,000) was derived from sales by the foundation piling
segment fo a single customer.
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the aggregate of the value of foundation piling and

sife investigation contracts; income derived from property management;

renfal income from property leasing; and income from the sale of

properties held for sale, after eliminations of all significant infragroup

fransactions.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains, net is as follows:

SER S S R

2016 2015
FE FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000

Revenue:
Foundation piling and site invesfigation 3,018,427 3,752,214
Property development 959,964 991,260
Property invesiment and management 26,177 13,128
Others 52,748 79,811

4,057,316 4,836,413

Other income and gains, net:

Interest income 15,546 26,211
Insurance claims 4,164 3,458
Subsidy income* 226 165
Foreign exchange gains, net = 6,731
Fair value gains on derivative instruments -

fransaction not qualifying as hedge 5,302 229
Management service income 413 676

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, nef [note 39) 112,852 =

Others

*

7,908 4,849

146,411 42,319

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income.

£ 2015/2016
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6. RBEKA 6.  FINANCE COSTS
—E-RE —E—AfF
2016 2015
FET T
HK$'000 HK$000
PITEEREX ZHE Inferest on bank borrowings and overdrafts 16,860 14,706
W BERPYERZENMEFE less: Inferest capitalised in properties under
(Bt 15) development (note 15) (5,364) =
11,496 14,706
7. BR¥RDRF 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEEZBBRDEMENR, GIAT The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(credifing):

DIBIRRIEE :

Bz ZBE-RE —ZT-hfE

Notes 2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
BEMEKAR Cost of properties sold 423,562 441,331
W EATHE Kt B & T2 R Cost of foundation piling and site
invesfigation work 2,623,854 3,433,818
Pt AR A AR Cost of services rendered 84,927 102,164
wE Depreciation 13 79,953 78,913
REMA 2 RIRFBLNK Minimum lease payments under
operating leases 118,738 106,966
%R Auditors’ remuneration 2,833 2,563
EERM Employee benefit expense (including
(BREEEMS —WE8) - directors’ remuneration - note 8):
TERFS Wages and salaries 532,672 488,960
RIREFEIER Pension scheme contributions 15,916 15,095

548,588 504,055

126 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(credifing):

(Contd]

Mt —B-XE —F-If
Notes 2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Foreign exchange losses/(gains), nef* 2,223 (6,731)

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment* 18 - 2,000
Impairment of frade receivables* 21 4 387
Impairment of other receivables, nef* 22 99 1,069

Loss on disposal and write-off of items

of property, plant and equipment* 2,904 180
loss on disposal of an

investment property* = 161
Loss/(gain) on disposal of

subsidiaries, net* 39 (112,852 790
Fair value gains on derivative

instruments - fransaction not

qualifying as hedge* (5,302) (229)
Changes in fair value of
investment properties 14 (32,390) (33,121)

Impairment of an amount due from
an associate 11 14

Rental income from operating leases

of machinery (18,052) (24,389)
Rental income from
investment properties (29,411) (13,9006)

Direct operating expenses
(including repairs and maintenance)
arising from renfo|—eoming

investment properties 5,077 6,555

* These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income
P! )

and gains, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

£ 2015/2016
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31 March 2016 —Z—X"E=A=+—H

8. EEME

RIE EMRR - AR ARG 383(1)
(@]~ b~ () R ERAR(BREESRE
HEMGOIE2HRBECANFREESR

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Direcfors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant fo the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(al, (b), (c) and [f] of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

Bean T about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
—E-RE Z—ZET—nfF
2016 2015
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$'000
we Fees:
BITES Executive directors — —
FRITES Non-executive directors = —
BUFRTES Independent non-executive directors 1,152 1,152
WITES 2 HMBS - Other emoluments of executive directors:
HEN - =R R B Salaries, allowances and benéfits in kind 38,364 42,911
AERAEAL * Performance related bonuses* 4,458 =
RIKSETEIMER Pension scheme contributions 54 60
44,028 44,123

Y ARRMTESARFAEL K
ARAIMERBENADLETE - &
NSEREERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

* Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments

which are defermined as a percentage of the dividends declared by the
Company, which was referenced o the performance of the Group.
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31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

8. EEME(#E) 8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Contd)

ENSENEUEEMEWT

The remuneration paid or payable fo each of the direcfors is as follows:

E245) 9= 1214
REWFG it N
Salaries, FVerAAl STEIfE
allowances  Performance Pension
#E  and benefits related scheme w5t
Fees in kind bonuses  confributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-RE 2016
HiTES ! Executive directors:
BRERE(REE]) Mr. Fung Chiy Chak, Victor
['Mr. Fung'] - 21,936 2,786 18 24,740
BRELE Mr. Chiv Chin Hung - 8,380 836 18 9,234
BB Mr. Lau Kin Fai - 8,048 836 18 8,902
- 38,364 4458 54 42,876
FHTES ! Non-executive directors:
ITRELAE Mr. Wang Tionbing - - - = =
Stuart Morrison Grant f4 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant - - - - -
BEARE Mr. Yang Hon Hsiang' - - - - -
LT Mr. Jusfin Wai = = = = =
ERRLE Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard - - - - -
BUFHITES Independent non-execufive
directors;
LhELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho 288 - - - 288
EN it Mr. Tse Man Bun 288 - - - 288
ETHARE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 288 - - - 288
ks Mr. Li Kit Chee 288 - - - 288
1,152 - - - 1,152
st Total 1,152 38,364 4,458 54 44,028

F% 2015/2016 129
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31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

8. EEME(Z&) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd)
EE - 28
RENHE BiRe
Salaries, BTt HE I
allowances  Performance Pension
#%  and benefits related scheme et
Fees in kind bonuses  confributions Total
FET FHT FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-1f 2015
HTES ! Executive directors:
BEE Mr. Fung = 21,134 = 18 21,152
BHE/E? Miss Jennifer Kwok? = 6,189 = b 6,195
HEBEE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung = 8,088 = 18 8,106
ey S M. Lau Kin Fai - 7,500 — 18 7518
= 42911 = 60 42 971
FHTES Non-executive directors:
IRERE Mr. Wang Tionbing — - - = =
Stuart Morrison Grant 5t 4 Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant = = = = =
ey Mr. Yang Han Hsiong' = = = = -
BERELE Mr. Justin Wai = = - - -
BRRRRE M:r. Law Yiu Fot Richard - - - = =
BUFHTES Independent non-execufive
directors:
BELE M. Fan Chor Ho 288 = = = 288
HWRE Mr. Tse Man Bun 288 = = = 288
ETRRE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 288 - - - 288
T RE Mr. Li Kit Chee 288 = = = 288
1,152 = = = 1,152
st Total 1,152 42911 = 60 44,123

‘ HRAEERERARIETES - ¥
TR RNFATERER

: R MERHEAR R ABITEE (BT ’
EE|) N_T-WFCH-REK-

AEER  HEEEREXRERELT
AT 2 Bk

‘ Mr. Yang Han Hsiang resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 17 February 2016.

Miss Jennifer Kwok resigned as an executive director of the Company
[“Executive Director”) with effect from 1 July 2014.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo
waive any remuneration during the year.
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2015: four directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two
(2015: one| nondirector highest paid employees are as follows:

“E-RE —T—hF

2016 2015

FEr FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 9,255 4,807
Performance related bonuses* 668 =
Pension scheme contributions 18 18
9,941 4,825

H The nondirector highest paid employees are entitled to bonus payments
which are determined as a percentage of the dividends declared by the
Company, which was referenced fo the performance of the Group.

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

EBEAH
Numbers of employees
—F-RE —F-h%F

2016 2015

HK$4,500,000 to HK$5,000,000 1 |
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 1 —
2 |

£ 2015/2016
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10. PRSHI 10. INCOME TAX
BANGHRFANTBELE 2G5 Hong Kong profits fax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
ERB BN 2165%(ZF—HF: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
16.5%) {E LB o BHE fh it [= fE 2R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
BEM 2 HIAE RARER S G 23R calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which
TTEBBERGE - the Group operafes.
“E-XE ZThF
2016 2015
FET TIET
HK$000 HK$000
BNER Current:
ARERDRN 2 TAR - Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:
FE PRC:
BB Hong Kong 48,947 18,371
HAbi = Elsewhere 345,075 335,623
394,022 353,994
FEEEEEE Overprovision in the prior years:
FE - PRC:
BE Hong Kong (79) (39)
H b= Elsewhere - (178)
79) 217)
ERERIE (M 29) Deferred tax (note 29) 45,386 (36,732)
AEEZHIBR #E Total tax charge for the year 439,329 317,045

132 ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax af the sfatufory rates
Provision for land appreciation fax
Tax effect of land appreciation fax
Adjustments in respect of current fax of prior years
Income not subject fo fax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group's subsidiaries
in Mainland China
Tax losses utilised from prior years
Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
sfatutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective fax rate is

—E-RE —ZT—AF
2016 2019
FiEx FErT
HK$000 HK$ 000
951,837 823,211
163,422 145,467
207,458 196,195
4,445 (21,293)
(79) (217)
(5,408) 4,513)
40,998 23,193
33,967 (22,071)
(9,809) (2,633)
4,332 2917
439,329 317,045

£ 2015/2016
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —ZE—R"E=A=1+—8H

AERRMARE :

BE_T-AS=-A=1—HIHR
FERHRE - SREAR
1508 Il(BE=_S—MF
ZRA=1+—HLLFE : 10.05#(l)

REIRR S — B A B 20.0 71l
(ZZ2—h%F : 5.0/()

EEIR RIS -
RS —B(—F—0F:
FAREBAR 15.0%()

. ARBAEBRRRRELGEREF

BRERAF THIRBA QR E @R R
RIE LA FE S 396,874,000
(= T — A F: 399,394,000/
TL)RRARFEENCHTERKREE
874,665,903 (—E—HF : LTAK
INHEFI58874,665,903 Bk )5t & o

BE T R"EN_Z—FHF=A

=t—HLEFE FAEEYEDHTE
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11. DIVIDENDS

—B-R"¥ ZFhF
2016 2015
& THETT
HK$°000 HK$ 000

Dividends paid during the year:

Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2015 - HK15.0 cents [year ended
31 March 2014: HK10.0 cents) per

ordinary share 131,200 87,467
Interim — HK20.0 cents (2015: HK5.0 cenfs)
per ordinary share 174,933 43,733

306,133 131,200

Proposed final dividend:
Final = Nil (2015: HK15.0 cents per
ordinary share) — 131,200

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year affributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$396,874,000 (2015: HK$399,394,000), and the number
of ordinary shares of 874,665,903 (2015: 874,665,903) in issue
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.
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31 March 2016

Cos:
At beginning of year
Additions
Disposols/writeof
Disposal of subsidicres
[note 39(a] and [bl)

Fxchange realignment

RZE-AE=A=1t-H A 31 March 2016

ZHTERAE

&

KERFERR

HE /38
HEMERA

(W3t 39(a) R o)
[ R

A —
S
N—

REFE

=
=

<

Accumuloted depreciaion
and impaiment:
Atbeginning of year
Depreciation provided during
fhe year
Disposals/wiiteof
Disposal of subsidiaries
[note 39a) and (b))

Exchange redlignment

—AEZA=T-B A 31 March 2016

Net carrying amount:

RZE—7"E=A=1—H A3 March 2016

RZE-RE=A=1-H A 31 March 2015
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W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—X~¥=A=1+—8H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RER fiR

Bz £E BE

THREF  Equipment  Fumitre - BE 0556
lond and and and Motor Motor ~ Leasehold it
buildings  machinery fixtores ~ vehicles yacht - improvements Tofal
FEr FEn FEn FEr FEn FEr FEr
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
217,830 973,399 12,663 20,040 6,098 18,784 1248514
- 26,142 193 1447 - 2472 30,254
ST RIS R0 _98y o8]
- w7 L Sy (8Os
18 o) - )
217,348 964,183 4313 19,138 6,098 17811 1,228,891
30734 780,935 11,271 13,223 6,098 14286 856,547
7,980 67,329 601 1,807 - 2,236 79,953
S o3 I (1997) — 98 [32.459)
S p (639 - N TR ATY]
o 8) B (8 - Ly 5%
38,687 821,395 3,361 12,851 6,098 13,004 895,486
178,661 142,788 952 6,287 = 4717 333,405
186,796 192,464 1,392 6,817 - 4498 391,9¢7
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RA:
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HE

BRARALEE
2 (HRE 19)

e/

HEMBAR
(K2 390

B

13. M3 - HBERRB(E)

31 March 2015

Cost

At beginning of year

Additions

Transfer from properties held
for sale [note 19]

Disposals/writeoff

Disposol of subsidiaries
[note 39(d)|

Exchange redlignment

RZE-RF=A=1t-H A3l March2015

SRR

)
KERFERR

KERRERS

e/

HEMBAR
(K2 390)

B

Accumulated depreciation

and impairment

At beginning of year

Depreciafion provided during
the year

Impaimen provided during
the yeor

Disposals /writef

Disposol of subsidiaries
[note 39(d)|

Exchange redlignment

RZE-RF=A=1t-H A3l March2015

REAE

Net carrying amount:

RZE-RF=A=1t-H A3l March2015

RZZ-ME=A=1-RB Ar31 March 2014
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT /Cont'd)

RER AN

e kg il

THEEF  Equpment  Fumilve g B 0RRE
Land and ond ond Molor Molor  Leasehold a5t
buldings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles yocht  improvements Tolal
TEL TAL TAL 7L TEL 7L 7L
HS000  HKS000  HKSO00 SO0 HKSO00  HKS000 HkEOO0
217524 926,100 12,885 20,850 6,098 18495 1201952
SR8 168 5,502 = 01 82,780
7 = s L - = 7
B (28.517) (322 (6,311] - - 36,150
- - (68) - - - (68]
(1 Q) - (1 - 2 Y
207530 97339 12603 20,040 6,098 18784 1248514
2752 73979 10,828 17,228 6,098 10281 806,946
7983 66478 723 1,479 - 225 78913
- 242 - - - 1758 2,000
- (25541 212) (5,482 - - (31,23
- - (68) - - - (6]
(1 Q) - 2 - 13 9
30734 780935 11,271 13,223 6,098 14286 856,547
186796 192,464 1,392 6,817 - 4498 391967
194772 186,341 2,057 3,022 - 8214 395,006
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Certain of the Group's land and buildings, equipment and machinery
were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
fo the Group [nofe 28].
Cerfain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased fo third
parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—B-R"E —FAF
2016 2015
FHET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Carrying amount at beginning of year 618,317 532,976
Additions — 54,949
Transfer from properties held for sale (nofe 19) 42,155 22,307
Disposal 0y (2,241)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39(a), (b) and (c)) (488,722) [22,530)
Fair value changes 32,390 33,121
Exchange realignment (31,504) (265)
Carrying amount af end of year 172,636 618,317

The Group's investment properties as at 31 March 2016 consist
of commercial properties in Mainland China (2015: commercial
properiies and residential properties in Mainland Chinal). The directors
of the Company have defermined that the investment properiies consist
of one [2015: two) class of asset, i.e., commercial (2015: commercial
and residential), based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each
property. The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2016 based on valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified property
valvers, at HK$172,636,000 (2015: HK$618,317,000). Each
year, the Company's directors decide to appoint which external valuer
fo be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company's
directors have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased fo third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in nofe 34(a) to
the financial statements.

£ 2015/2016
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14.

REWX(E)

RFEZREE

14.

TRIITAKERENE A VEFTE

FRRE

UTRE 2 &R
DNFHEE

[GESYES

WNARZ &Rk
ATEHE

CELES

%

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

Commercial properties

Recurring fair value
measurement for:

Commercial properties
Residential properties

RAFERN FIEERF2EZHLE
EMAVEFEER  AFEIELEE
ASEH(ZT—hF: &)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's investment properiies:

RZE-A"E=ZA=1-H
ERAUT 8B B ATE
Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2016 using

ERME  BATEE EXATUER

H®E BAHE WAE

(£158) (52F) (%£38)

Quoted  Significant  Significant

pricesin  observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
FiET FET FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
= = 172,636 172,636

RZZE-hF=A=+—H

ERA T BB ERYE
Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2015 using

EETS  BAUBE BATAUER

WE 8RR B ABUR

(B1E) (B2F) (F£3E)

Quoted  Significant  Significant

prices in  observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs st
[Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
FAT FAET FAT FAT
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
- — 103,042 103,042
- — 515,275 515,275
- — 618,317 618,317

During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements

between Llevel 1 and Llevel 2 and no transfers into or out of level 3

(2015: Nil).
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14. REYE(E) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

A FEEREHEE)

SEREBATESRERLATE

Fair valve hierarchy (Contd

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within level 3 of

AT EZ R : the fair value hierarchy:

[EELYES FEME
Commercial ~ Residential
properties properties
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
R-ZE—NFMNA—HZEREE Carrying amount at 1 April 2014 42,522 490,454
NE Additions = 54,949
EEABEHHEE 2METE19)  Transfer from properties held for sale (note 19) 22,307 =
HE Disposal = (2,241)
& —RMB AR (K 39(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(c)) (22,530 =
N EEE) Fair value changes 60,815 (27,694
b 5 AR Exchange realignment (72) (193)

R-ZZE-RF=A=+—H Carrying amount at 31 March 2015 and
RZZE-—RAFNA—HZEREA 1 April 2015 103,042 515,275
EREAREHEE 2METE19)  Transfer from properties held for sale (note 19) 42,155 -
B8 2 8] (B3 39(a) K (b)) Disposal of subsidiaries (nofe 39(a) and (b)) - (488,722)
NHEEE Fair value changes 32,390 -
EE 5% % Exchange realignment (4,951) (26,553)
RZZE-—R"E=ZA=+—B2ZKHEE Carying amountat 31 March 2016 172,636 -

£ 2015/2016
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14. REWX(E)

RFEERREE(E)

AT AREDEGERBMGETERE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy (Cont'd

Below is a summary of the valuation fechniques used and the key inputs

PRABBIHE to the valuation of investment properties:
EATTEER
BAHE
tER % Significant #E (EF9E)
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range (weighted average|
- TR
2016 2015
I E i BRME BERLEE ARMERAELR S51%ZE-10% 40%ZE-3%
Commercial properties Direct comparison Property-specific (-35%) (-5%)
in Mainland China approach adjusiment rafe -51% 1o -10% -40% 10 -3%
(35% 5%
I B 2 (EEWF BREEE ARMERAELR AER  -105E2%(-8%)
Residential properiies Direct comparison Property-specific N/A -10% to 2%
in Mainland China approach adjustment rafe (8%

AEEREMEZ AFEDERERL
BE - 2ELHMSPALBYE D
HEBYMAEERENFDIRHE

flrtmemiE - g BEREEE

BEMET - ATEHERIBY LM
BAIESAAFEERHTTRESA
B 2 EARRIRRIR -

. BREPYE

FHEETT

AEERE
BRERAHRHEEZME(HE19)
BAEF B (M O)

B 5L 2%

FRER
& : BIEEE D

e D)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

The fair value of the Group's invesiment properties is determined using

the direct comparison approach by reference fo the recent sales price of

comparable properties in the open market, adjusted for size, location,

floor level and quality of the Group's investment properties compared to

the recent sales. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to

the unobservable input that the higher the adjusiment rafe will result in o

higher fair value.

15. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
—E-RE =ZE—nF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
Balance at beginning of year 1,275,554 1,171,959
Additions during the year 575,141 517,051
Transfer o properties held for sale (note 19) (30,846) (413,000
Interest capitalised (nofe 6) 5,364 =
Exchange realignment (52,254) [456)
Balance at end of year 1,772,959 1,275,554
less: current portion (1,772,959) (65,5006)
Non-current portion — 1,210,048
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16. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

SEVTNSgit
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$000

Share of net assets — T

Amount due from an associate 384 378
384 373
less: Impairment (384) (373)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no
fixed terms of repayment.

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

MR, AL B
FriFE &7 AR EREY FERERAEIL

BADEEE Place of Percentage
Particulars incorporation/ of ownership
£ of issued registration  inferest attributable FEXEK
Name shares held and business fo the Group Principal activity
—B-NF ZT-0F
2016 2015
NEREBR AT RG] BE 50 50 REZR
Turbo Dragon Investment Limited Ordinary share Hong Kong Investment holding
AHEERE 17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

RETBRARRE - WA

R-_E—RNE=ZRA=+—H ' ®|
B1,197,000% (= & — & F:
1,249,000%7T) 2 K ETRARE R
KASHREE - BReBATEMET
ZEERBK  EFRAEATFEELT
FiTE - AEEESNIHBELE -

—E-XF —T-1F
2016 2015
FET &L
HK$°000 HK$000

Unlisted equity investment, at cost 1,197 1,249

As at 31 March 2016, an unlisted equity investment with a carrying
amount of HK$ 1,197,000 (2015: HK$1,249,000) was stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that its fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of it
in the near future.

£ 2015/2016
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18.

20.
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18. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Spare parts and others

19. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At beginning of year

Transfer o property, plant and equipment
(note 13

Transfer fo investment properties (note 14)

Transfer from properties under development
(note 15)

Properties sold during the year

Exchange realignment

At end of year

20. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Amounts due from customers for contract works
Amounts due to customers for contract works

Confract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses fo date
less: Progress billings received and receivable

—E-RE ZE—AF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
642 639
22,909 13,543
23,551 14,182
—E-RE —ZE—AF
2016 2015
FBT FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
646,659 604,640
= (7)
(42,155)  (22,307)
30,846 413,000
(313,263) (348,800)
(19,491) 139
302,596 646,659
—E-rF  ZFIF
2016 2015
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
116,625 160,041
(660,898 (686,495)
(544,273) (526,454
12,207,275 10,865,475
(12,751,548) (11,391,929
(544,273)  (526,454)
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES

The Group has established credit

standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo

policies that follow local industry
frade customers
other than for refention receivables are within 30 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade and retention receivables relate fo a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its frade and retention receivable balances. Trade
and refention receivables are non-interestbearing.

—E-RF _—Z-1F

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$000 HK$000

Trade and retention receivables 727,634 1,017,028

Impairment (391) (387)
727,243 1,016,641

Included in the trade and retention receivables is an amount due from
a related company of HK$572,000 (2015: HK$254,000), which is
repayable on credit ferms similar fo those offered to the major customers
of the Group.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date and nef of provision, is as follows:

—F-R"% ZFhF
2016 2015
FET THTT
HK$000 HK$ 000

FEWE ZBRN Trade receivables:
Q0 HA Within 90 days 415,191 629,061
QIHZE180H 91 to 180 days 5,205 117
81HE360H 181 to 360 days 3,535 10,388
360 R £ Over 360 days 12,619 2,180
436,550 641,746
FEWREE Refention receivables 290,693 374,895
727,243 1,016,641

£ 2015/2016
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21.

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

—F-R"¥ ZFhF

2016 2015

FET TIET

HK$'000 HK$ 000

At beginning of year 387 194
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 4 387
Disposal of subsidiaries — [194)
At end of year 391 387

Included in the above provision for impairment of frade receivables of
HK$391,000 (2015: HK$387,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$391,000 (2015: HK$387,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.

The aged analysis of the frade and refention receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

—E-RE —E—nfF

2016 2015

FET TIET

HK$ 000 HK$000

Neither past due nor impaired 669,812 940,799
1 to 90 days past due 36,615 63,157
91 to 270 days past due 4,896 117
More than 270 days past due 15,920 12,568
727,243 1,016,641

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate fo a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable. The
carrying amounfs of the trade and refention receivables approximates fo
their fair values.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

SEVTNSgit
2016 2015
FET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000

Deposits for acquisition of items of property,
plant and equipment - %7
Prepayments and deposits 52,951 51,750
Other receivables 236,192 24,233
less: Impairment (4,215 (4,292
284,928 72,408

less: Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables classified as non-current assets

(1,386)  [1,918)
283,542 70,490

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as

follows:
—F-RE ZFRF
2016 2015
FEr &L
HK$°000 HK$ 000
At beginning of year 4,292 3,226
Impairment losses recognised, nef (nofe 7| 99 1,069
Exchange realignment (176) (3)
At end of year 4,215 4,292

Except for other receivables of HK$4,215,000 (2015:
HK$4,292,000) which were fully impaired, none of the above assets
is either past due or impaired and the financial assets included in the

above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.
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23. PTHESRITA 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

—E-RE —E—AF

2016 2015
FET THT
HK$000 HK$'000
FRBDEEITESRMIA Derivative financial instrument under nonrcurrent assefs:
RXEBE=H Cross currency swap 8,533 -
REEERI—ERXEMEBH  UE The Group enfered info a cross currency swap to manage its exchange
BHEXRER - ZX X EE= 81 3 rate exposures. This cross currency swap is not designated for hedging
SRR H) - WIRAFET AR ° purpose and is measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in
FEHTETAZ A FEESH 2 EF the fair value, net, of the non-hedging derivative amounting fo a gain of
8,533,000 (= —RF : &)t HK$8,533,000 (2015: Nil) were credited fo the statement of profit or
AFRAZBHERA - ZEeBMITAZE loss during the year. The carrying amount of the financial instrument was
HEEEQNTERS - LATASRT the same as ifs fair value. The above transaction involving a derivative
AP RR 5 TE—HEEBR T BT financial instrument was conducted with a creditworthy financial
WEENFEL & BT o institution with no recent hisfory of default.
REZE-_ZE-—RF=A=+—HILHF During the year ended 31 March 2015, changes in the fair value,
€« JEERF RS s AR EZE 2 net, of non-hedging inferest rate swaps amounting fo a gain of
AF 4,113,000 T ABZRA ° HK$4,113,000, were credited to the statement of profit or loss.

24. WERBITERF EHRFARZ 24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND

FREIIRE RESTRICTED CASH
fiF ZEBE-ARE Z—T—AfF
Notes 2016 2015
FEx &L
HK$000 HK$000

EHRER - Time deposits:

—HipFHIfFR — other fime deposits [a) 1,013,868 443,862
— BT — sfructured deposits (b) 289,721 302,570
TR Total time deposits (c) 1,303,589 746,432
Re RIBTER Cash and bank balances al 502,830 541,064
XRHRE Restricted cash (d) - 24,000
HBET Total 1,806,419 1,311,496
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24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Contd)

Denominated in:

Renminbi ("RMB’)

HK$
Macao patacas
Other currencies

Ao L | A=A

2016 2003

FET FHT

HK$'000 HK$ 000

536,206 753,462

1,260,250 550,156

("MOP’) 9,232 6,966
731 912

1,806,419 1,311,496

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under

Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and

Administration of Setflement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other

currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange

business.

Nofes:

(a)

(b)

(c]

(d

Cash at banks earns inferest af floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between 7
days to 32 days (2015: within two months| depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn inferest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of defaulr.

The structured deposits are time deposits with fixed maturity dates and
are stated at amortised cost. The deposits are made for varying periods
of between 14 days to 94 days (2015: within two months). The
interest rates on the structured deposits fluctuated based on changes in
the currency exchange rate between USD and HK$. The Group uses
structured deposits primarily fo enhance the refurn on invesiment.

Included in the balance are time deposits of HK$42,603,000 (2015:
Nil) of which the origino| maturity is more than three months when
acquired.

As at 31 March 2015, a deposit of HK$24,000,000 was maintained
in a bank account for an interestbearing bank loan of HK$24,000,000
pursuant fo the relevant banking facilities (note 28).
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25. BNESERR BUYREZRE 25. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

FTRUIE
WERHAHE  BENEFRARESH An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
RZEROMT : period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—F-R"F ZThF
2016 2015
FHET BT
HK$'000 HK$000
FBNESEN Trade payables:
Q0 B Within 90 days 193,460 296,839
Q1HZ180H 91 to 180 days 273 1,849
180 £ Over 180 days 531 1,560
194,264 300,248
ENRE R Retention payables 190,870 184,246
FEETRIE Accruals 253,987 439,188
639,121 923,682
B OBRIERBEEZESTHIE  Less: Accrual classified as non-current liabilities (4,387) =
634,734 923,682
ENEFEXREMNRESHARLE The trade and refention payables are non-inferestbearing and are
—REFHRNTE - normally seffled on 90-day terms.

26. HEMEAFIE ckET £ KTk 26. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS

IR IN'ADVANCE
HipEMZEY ARE - THEZEHA Other payables are non-inferestbearing and have an average ferm of
—f&A - one month.

27. EWET® 27. DEPOSITS RECEIVED
BRI EBEELRTMERESHR Deposits received represented the down payments received from
BREMAEEHEMEHNESNEETR customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of properties under
FUER & - AEERWEDEER development and sale contracts of properties held for sale of the Group.
HEEEME - ARNETFIIREH The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties when they were still
BEREZBREENE - BEFARELE under development. As contracted with customers, deposits were paid
EXfE¢ - AEBREZZESE to the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale contracts. Such amounts
HERS - held by the Group are non-interestbearing.

148 ANNUALREPORT 2015/2016



[ ]
R B A R A A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

28. MIESRITEE 28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
E-RE %
2016 2015
BERFI= iR
Effective Effective
inferest rate HRR  FAET  interestrate HRE  FET
(% Maturity — HK$000 (% Matuity — HK$000
Eiiptil Unsecured:
RITER Bank loans 2340 20162018 768,993 1.7-3.4 20152017 271,774
Pepiiviil Secured:
RITER Bank loans 27 20162017 6,100 2.7 20152017 9940
PHER Instalment loans 1.9 20162031 81,853 1.7 20152031 86,185
87,953 06,125
RTEEHE Total bank borrowings 856,946 367,899

—E-RE —T—HF

2016 2015
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$000
BETHIEB A Analysed into:

ARTHBEAERRITEE Bank borrowings repayable:
RN—FRHIRE K Within one year or on demand 198,568 143,278
FEF In the second year 199,869 104,200
F-FEFERF(BEERMTE) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 398,840 56,684
tHEEhF Beyond five years 59,669 63,737

856,946 367,899

BR—FRER  2A Portion due within one year, classified
mEBEIHS as current liabilities (198,568)  (143,278)
REIE S long ferm portion 658,378 224,621
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28.

B SERITEE(E)

RERATE  AEBOLAREE
SRR BT 2,260,000 87
(ZZ2—AF : 6,100,000 7) 25T A
EDENT 8 BATEE - LA AR —ER
SREREE S EARTEH -

RBRITER ZIHHR - HARTE
RZEBRSRR R_T—RERZ
E-RE=A=t—BZAR—FA%
2 2R 2 Bl X 2 196,308,000/
LR 137178000 L RZE—R
FRZZ-AF=A=+—BZER
£ -F 7RI X F2202,129,000% T
£ 108,040,000/ 7L« R =& — R4
R—ZE-—hF=RA=T—HZARE=
FEFIF(BREREME)D AN
2 398,840,000 Tt K& 58,944,000%
T RZB-AFR-_FB-—AF=H
ST-RZAREFREDRIXfFZ
59,669,000 7T K% 63,737,000/ 7T °

R-ZE-RF=ZRA=+—-H'F&
Bz ERROTRENAEREER
174,895,000% (= & — & F:
182,673,000 ) 2 & A L4 - #
F o RN e (R 13/ -

RZZ-RF=A=+—H x&£EZ
&K R1T 55 24,000,000 LA 1R
BRERERTRE HETRERTRS 2
77 524,000,000 7 £2 # #& R (MY 7E
24d)) - ZRITIEENFANEREE -

AN - RRBEHEETHB ARG
ZEERER RN 306() - Bk
KGEBHZAERAR(HEDRAER
AE T IME A B 2 BEBCR) IRstak M
BRREG C RITRE R EARR -

SEMARTEEDRIBN R
B RITBEZREEEE QA FEME

o

fom Bt

A& B 2 RITREFRAETTRHE ©
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's bank loans in
the amount of HK$2,260,000 (2015: HK$6,100,000) containing
a repayment on demand clause are included within current interest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans payable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of the bank loans are: HK$ 196,308,000 and
HK$137,178,000 payable within one year or on demand as af
31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively; HK$202,129,000 and
HK$ 108,040,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2016
and 2015, respectively; HK$398,840,000 and HK$58,944,000
payable in the third o fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2016 and
2015, respectively; HK$59,669,000 and HK$63,737,000 payable
beyond five years as at 31 March 2016 and 2015, respectively.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group's secured bank borrowings were
secured by cerfain of ifs land and buildings, equipment and machinery
(note 13 with carrying amounts of HK$174,895,000 (2015:
HK$182,673,000).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group's unsecured bank borrowing
amounting to HK$24,000,000 was supported by a deposit of
HK$24,000,000 maintained in a bank account pursuant fo the relevant
banking facilities [note 24(d)). The bank borrowing was fully seftled
during the year.

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted fo certain of its subsidiaries [note 36(al).
Mr. Fung, who is a beneficial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of
the Company through Fortunate Pool Limited (“Fortunate Pool”), also
provided personal guarantees in respect of borrowing facilities granted
o these subsidiaries.

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating inferest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
fair values.

The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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29. EELEBIIE 29. DEFERRED TAX
RAEERN  BERBARBEREEZE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assefs during the year are
BT : as follows:
FEAEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities
B
BHEH

Bk WEHD
REME  Allowance in

Revaluation excess of FRHH
of investment related  Withholding H
properties  depreciation taxes Total

TFET FAT FAT FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

RZZE-MEMA—RB At Apil 2014 (102,189) (13,812)  (139,298] (255,299
FRNBIEEKFTA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(%) 2RI fo the statement of profit or loss

HIA(KIFE10) during the year [note 10) (9,410) 2,778 22,071 15,439

SRR EAR] Withholding tax paid on
Bz BRI 2 repatriation of eamings from

M subsidiaries in Mainland China = = 16,042 16,042
HE B AF Disposal of a subsidiary

(Bi5E39(c) (note 39(c)) 560 — — 560
bE 5 SR Exchange realignment 53 = (112) (59)
RZZE—0F At 31 March 2015

=R=+—Hk and

—Z-REMNA—A 1 April 2015 (110,986) (17,034) [101,297) (223,317
FRNBIEEKETA  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

(k) 2 fo the statement of profit or loss

BB 10) during the year [note 10) (10,048) 3,074 (33,967) (40,941)

s B AMHEAR  Withholding fox paid on
B 2 &2 I S A+ repatriation of eamings from

o B0 subsidiaries in Mainland China - - 25,789 25,789
HEMBAR] Disposal of subsidiaries

(Pf7E 39(a) K (b)) [note 39(a) and (b)) 88,062 = - 88,062
b 5 SR Exchange realignment 5,887 - 4216 10,103
RZT—RF

—Bp=+—7 At 31 March 2016 (27,085) 7.960)  (105,259)  (140,304)
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. RERIE ()
i

EAHIREE

R-Z—NFEMA—A

FARBHERETA
ZAERERIR (HEE 10)
B 5 R

R-E—RAF=A=1+—H
k=—Z—RFWPA—H

FARNBREERNG
ZERBIR(MF 10)
BE 5 %

R-_E—"E=A=1+—H

AEBREBELZHEBRA
238,457,000 (= T — A F:
281,075,000 7T) + A A{ERE R HR4K
HEHBEEZ ARIZ ARERBEF -
RYELABBZHMBRRMELZZSE
BEITSEIBETRBLE B
JE R TR B AR R B S B REET

AJRE

REFBECERSHE(TCEMEH
%1 R BRI AINE S ERE
IMEBETSIR MRS ABKI0%EN
B ZBRERA-_STN\F—A—B#
ERWERAR_ETLF+A=+—
AZBES &R o i B At s BN
REEMERAZERTEHIERE « A
AREEAREZEMBBE - Ei - K
& BAE RN DR A M KL B AR
BH-TT N\F-A—HRELZAEF
ke 2 R SEMFEMH

ARRNEN FEBR 2 B B L BRI
BRER -
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)

Deferred tax assets

+ i IEER
e
Provision

for land
appreciation

tax
FAT
HK$'000
At 1 Apiil 2014 34,572
Deferred tax credited tfo the sfatement of profit or loss
during the year [note 10) 21,293
Exchange realignment (36)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015
55,829
Deferred tax charged to the stafement of profit or loss
during the year [note 10) (4,445)
Exchange realignment (2,251)
At 31 March 2016 49,133

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$238,457,000
(2015: HK$281,075,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that faxable profits will be
available against which the fax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant fo the Corporate Income Tax [“CIT") law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared 1o foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a fax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China
in respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares
—E-RE —T-—AF
2016 2015
FiE FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Authorised:
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid:
874,665,903 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each 87,466 87,466

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option schemes are included in note 31
o the financial statements.

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 8 August 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
2012 Scheme') for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
fo eligible participants who confribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to
be granted under the 2012 Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. No share option has
been granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year.
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BRERTEI(E)

ARRZ —F——FFrEMEWLT :

El:)

Purpose

AERSEE
Eligible Participants
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows:

FEER(EEREURLBRENRZDEER ARG UK
BUHAKE R/ FAKBEMKERAFEEARNER 2 EME
BZEY ZRMERFERIARZAERS /\% HEE AR
SEEBRRMEAERAEBZ AR UHEARBRARAIRR
ZEBNERER  RANEQRER2EESZEELBSHRAERM
ERZAR 7%%%}35%  BEAREGURFHEREURAEER
BEEBLMBERRKRABEZRERES -

To enable the board of directors (the “Board”) to grant options to
reward eligible participants who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the
Board, would contribute or benefit or had contributed or benefited to the
business, development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever)
of the Group and/or any of the entities in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest, and fo provide incentives fo eligible
participants fo perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
in the interests and benefits of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole, while at the same time allowing the eligible
participants fo share the fruits of the Company's business achieved
through their effort and confribution, as well as fo enable the Group fo
recruit high quality employees who are valuable to the management
and long ferm business and financial goals and success of the Group.

ERZ2E_Z-_FHEz AL BIRRABISERME A sk
ERAEREBIFBES TRAE SRABEXEFR(EREH
17 BT RB M TER ) A EEZREER R UK H AR
R/SERHBARN, REMERER ¥  ERIER(RE
ARG E)E BRI A R AEBEAARE - FAA - BRE - 1Jt
BA - fEmsRERGImEm - e RS - MRERE) -

P D - RBMBERaERH -

A person who is enfitled fo participate in the 2012 Scheme, being any
fulHime or parttime employees, executives, officers or directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of the interested
entiies and any confractors, advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers or
providers (of, for example, goods, plants and machineries, materials or
services), customers, disfributors, business ally or joint venture partners
of the Group who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the Board, will
contribute or benefit or have contributed or benefited to the business,
development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever) of the
Company and/or any of the subsidiaries and/or any of the interested

entities.



31. BRETEI(E)

ARBZ T _FFrEHEQMT
(%)

A FETZ EBRAS N FRER A
HEETRAZBDL

Total number of ordinary shares available
for issue and the percentage of the issued
share capital that it represents as at the
date of the annual report

BE2EEZHSLR
Maximum entiflement of each participant

RIEEREVAREE S R
Period within which the securities must be
faken up under an opfion

RITERTIN BB BB 2 & IEHAR
Minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised

iISESALET AP

Amount payable on acceptance

31.

R B R AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2016 —E—RE=A=1+—8H

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Contd)

87,266,590 B E B K B #HITIRAZ 10% (Gt EEE /R ARFIR
RERAGHHM-_T——F/\A/\HZ872,665903KEEITR
7)o

87,266,590 ordinary shares and 10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903 shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meefing on 8 August 2012.

TEHEBNMER 1 2@ A PRE LA S BETRARZ 1% -
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

REeRESRRTEALENEEERESNGEZARA - 1§
Pt < B A NMSER R L B AREREE Bt + (105K »

To be determined by the Board on a casetocase basis at its absolute
discrefion and nofified fo the grantee thereof, provided that the expiry

date of the said period shall not be later than ten (10) years from the
date of grant of the option concemed.

HHEZRRIEETE -

To be determined at the discretion of the Board.

ﬁ o
Nil.
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31. BRETEI(E)

ARBIZ ZFT—_FrafEZQT:

(&

BETEECEE

Basis for determining the exercise price

ATEIZ R N

The remaining life of the scheme
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

A summary of the 2012 Scheme of the Company is as follows: (Cont'd)

S EBREMS -

In respect of any particular option:

RITEEREREN AR 2 GREHER HAEZFRLERE_T
—ZFi 22 BRNELBRER TR TEREEEERE LR
E - ETRENSIRUATSET RS

the price per share payable to the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and prescribed by the Board on a
casefocase basis, bearing in mind the purpose of the 2012 Scheme,
in its absolute discretion upon the grant of the option, provided that such
exercise price shall not be less than the highest of the following:

() By zmEfE:

the nominal value of a share;

b BEERLAH(ARERE)NMRAERRERMRZR
g - &
the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and

(] EEBRERLAPALO)EZXANBRAZEEARER
P B0 P (E © 3
the average closing price of the shares as stafed in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or

BRBBE( X o) E () i) 2 TEE(ER) - TREERRE
- CFHEATRR(ETRR) N EAEN T FHERE
SN ERBTREZRR TR FE -

where applicable, the exercise price for the option concerned (referred
fo a) fo [c) above) as may be adjusted by the Board from time fo time
pursuant fo the rules of the 2012 Scheme conceming adjustments of,
inter alia, the exercise price upon the occurrence of any relevant event

as defined in the 2012 Scheme.

—T-CFEE T —F \AREBF T F PEINAE ML
R-FZ—F\ALRARAZ EXERGREEW °

The 2012 Scheme remains in force for a period of ten (10) years
commencing from 8 August 2012 and expiring at the close of business
hours of the Company on 7 August 2022.
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32.

BRETERTHA ARIRBE SRR
RAg LRE 2R -

RBE_Z-—A"EF=A=+t—HILEFE
FPEEREZEMBHRRER —F
—ZFAHETYEBREERL 1T
i~ BHISRM  MEEFARITEBR
1

(E1i]

REAFERBREFEASERESER
HEPNIBRR GRS EP R
5

REFINEEEREZBRED RIEH -
AEBES R M BAR B
FIBBEERTE Rk AT R °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Contd))

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or fo vote
at shareholders” meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and up fo the date of approval
of these financial statements, no share option under the 2012 Scheme
was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there is no oufstanding
share option under the 2012 Scheme.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint
venture enferprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries
which are registered in the PRC has been transferred fo statutory reserves
which are resfricted as to use.
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33. BAEXGFERRRER 2D
BEEMELAE

BREEEAHER R S 2 AR E
MBARZFEHINWT

THERERNRAME(FER) AR AF
FEHEEMBAR(REAIZALE
(BR)KE )2 FFERBRR LS -

FEBBCRER A ZBEB D

DR IRERAR R o F i Rl

TR FIERERR R 2 AR B
B —f3FER R R
BEFR(HIEE)

TR IR 2 FRR IR BCR
B R

Bifet : AT IR - 28 BRNFAREE
= o

o
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling

interests are set out below.

The information set out below represents the non-controlling interests in

Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries

(collectively, “Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group”).

—F-R"¥ ZFhF
2016 2015
Percenfage of equity interest held
by non-controlling inferests 40% 40%
TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests 115,660 104,599
Dividend paid fo non-controlling interests 184,000 124,000
loan advanced from a nonontrolling
shareholder (note| — 32,000
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests
at the end of the reporting period 88,761 189,101

Nofe: The balance was unsecured, inferestfree and fully repaid during the year.
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-

EANEAR(E) CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Contd)

TRINFRAME(EE) KB 2 HMBE The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of
FHEE - BB ETARREHE Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Group. The amounts disclosed are
GIE S before any intercompany eliminations:

Yogs

BRI FR
FRE R
FAZEREER

MBEE
FRBEE
AR
FRBEE

REREXH REREFR
KB/ (AR )REEB R EREFE
FARBERB R REFR

Be LERR SR EINFE

REROZ

(o) TEBHEA

AEBERBLEEOLH - UE
HNERNF—2t+HEAR -
HEETHS(HE 13 RARE
W (B 14) - HAOGR—RI
ERMPREPIMERTE R
RERBRTRAEHRELEESSR

%%o

—E-RE —E-1f

2016 2015
FHET T
HK$000 HK$'000
Revenue SIONBY 27 ¥ 3. 752,204
Total expenses, net (2)729277)% (3,490,717
Profit for the year 289,150 261,497
Total comprehensive income for the year 289,150 261,497
Current assets 1,514,355 1,784,361
Non-current assets 117,031 157,819
Current liabilities (1,213,386) (1,457,608
Non-current liabilities (196,098) (91,820)
Net cash flows from operating acfivities 438,955 327,733
Net cash flows from/[used in) investing acfivifies (19,275) 46,225
Net cash flows used in financing activities (315,114) (324,400
Nef increase in cash and cash equivalents 104,566 49 558

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 13) and
its investment properties [note 14) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
fo seventy-five months. The ferms of the leases generally also
require the tenanfs and customers to pay security deposifs and
provide for periodic rental adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.
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34. BEMNTHE)

fa) 1ERHIEA(E)

RBEHR  AEEREAEE
FPREPFILZ P AIHHELEHE
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34.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)  As lessor (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had fotal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

—EBE-RE ZE-—REF

2016 2015

FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Within one year 12,620 36,190
In the second o fifth years, inclusive 26,227 19,433
Alter five years 2,009 869
40,856 56,492

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negofiated for terms ranging from five
fo thirty-six months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

—E-RE ZE—nfF

2016 2015

FEr FET

HK$000 HK$'000

Within one year 17,597 58,700
In the second fo fifth years, inclusive 13,602 3,267
31,199 61,967
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35. COMMITMENTS

In addifion to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 34(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

ZE-RE —ZT—AF
2016 2015
FHET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties:
— contracted, but not provided for — 6,586
Construction works relating fo properties
under development:
— contracted, but not provided for 393,734 878,527

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

[a) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

—F-R"E ZFRF
2016 2015
FET THTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Guarantees in respect of performance bonds
in relation to subsidiaries 195,469 416,775
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Contd)

(bl

As at 31 March 2016, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of morigage facilities granted by Shenyang Housing Fund
Management Center relafing to the mortgage loans arranged
for purchases of certain properties developed by a subsidiary of

the Company and the oufstanding mortgage loans under these
guarantees amounted to HK$ 14,277,000 (2015: Nil).

The Group's guarantee period sfarts from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon issuance of the relevant
ownership cerfificates.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the directors
consider that in case of default in payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principal fogether with the accrued interest
and penalty and therefore no provision has been made for these
guarantees in the financial statements.

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a) Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group's balances with its associate, a related
company and a non-controlling interest as at the end of
the reporting period are included in notes 16, 21 and 33,
respectively, to the financial statements. The maximum amount
due from a related company outstanding during the year was
HK$3,471,000 as disclosed pursuant o section 383(1)(d) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group

Short ferm employee benefits
Postemployment benefits

management personnel

Total compensation paid to key

“E-RE —T—hF
2016 2015
FE FET
HK$000 HK$'000
59,795 57,687
108 114
59,903 57,801

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(1)  Subcontracted works with related companies

(i

i

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group subcontracted E8M works of approximately
HK$150,000 (2015: Nil) to Tysan Engineering
(H.K.) Company Limited (“TEHK") (a then subsidiary
of the Company disposed of to Mr. Fung on 19
December 2014).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Tysan
Building Construction Company Limited (“TBC”,
a company ultimately controlled by Mr. Fung)
subcontracted rental and engineering works relating
fo tower cranes of approximately HK$993,000
(2015: HK$5,612,000] to the Group.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(1)

(2)

Subcontracted works with related companies (Contd)

il

(iv)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group
subcontracted building and construction works of
approximately HK$691,000 to TBC.

During the period from 1 April 2014 1o 19
December 2014, TBC subcontracted E&M works of
approximately HK$2,600,000 to TEHK.

Rental charges and management fees received from

related companies

(il

i

During the year ended 31 March 2016, TBC
paid rental charge and management fee of
HK$695,000 (2015: Nil) and HK$269,000
(2015: HK$490,000), respectively, to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, TEHK paid
rental charge and management fee of HK$202,000
(2015: Nil) and HK$78,000 (period from 20
December 2014 to 31 March 2015: HK$39,000),
respectively, fo the Group.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c)  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(2) Rental charges and management fees received from
related companies (Contd)

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2016, Cando
Trading limited (@ company ultimately controlled
by Mr. Fung] paid renfal charge and management
fee of HK$168,000 (2015: Nil) and HK$66,000
(2015: Nil), respectively, to the Group.

(iv)  Subsequent to the resignation of Miss Jennifer Kwok
as an Executive Director with effect from 1 July
2014, Tysan Trading Company Limited (“TTCL")
ceased fo be a related company of the Group.
During the period from 1 April 2014 to 30 June
2014, TTICL paid management fee of HK$ 110,000
fo the Group.

(3)  During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, Mr.
Fung provided personal guarantees to financial institutions
in connection with general credit facilities and performance
bonds granted fo certain subsidiaries of the Company.

These fransactions were enfered info by the Group and ifs related
companies in accordance with the terms of the agreements.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:
(Contd)

The related party fransactions in respect of items (c)(1) and (c)(2)
above and the disposals as detailed in notes 39(c) and 39(d) fo
the financial statements also constituted connected fransactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Personal guarantees
provided by Mr. Fung as disclosed in item (c)(3) above consfitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the listing
Rules and are exempted from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

38. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN A

SUBSIDIARY

On 18 March 2015, Tysan Property Development & Investment Limited
(“TPDIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the non-
controlling shareholder of Sparkle Key Limited, entered info a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which, TPDIL acquired a 3% equity
interest in Sparkle Key Llimited from the non-controlling shareholder
and the inferestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$10,800,000 owing
by Sparkle Key Limited fo the non-confrolling shareholder af a cash
consideration of HK$15,000,000 (of which HK$4,200,000 was
for the acquisition of the equity interest in Sparkle Key Limited and
HK$ 10,800,000 was for the settlement of the shareholder's loan) (the
“Sparkle Key Acquisition”). The Sparkle Key Acquisition was complefed
on 18 March 2015.

Upon the completion of the Sparkle Key Acquisition, Sparkle Key
Limited became an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Sparkle Key Acquisition did not result in any change in control
by the Company over Sparkle Key Limited and such acquisition was
accounted for as an equity fransaction. Accordingly, the debit balance
of HK$3,246,000, between the consideration of HK$ 15,000,000,
and the aggregate of the carrying amount of the non-ontrolling inferest
of HK$954,000 and the loan from the then non-controlling shareholder
of HK$10,800,000, was recorded in the retained profits in the equity
for the year ended 31 March 2015.
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39. HEKBEAF 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

o) HEGEKRE

(a] Disposal of Hiat Investment
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On 11 December 2015, the Group and an independent third
parly (the “Hiaf Investment Purchaser”), entered info a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant to which, the Hiat Investment
Purchaser acquired the entire equity inferest in Hiat Investment
and the interestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$23,495,000
owing by Hiat Investment fo the Group at a fotal consideration
of RMB87,500,000 (equivalent to HK$105,577,000) (the
"Hiat Investment Disposal”). The Hiat Investment Disposal
was completed on 11 December 2015. Hiatf Investment was
principally engaged in property leasing and management
business in Shanghai and the registered owner of the whole of
Block B and twentyfive car parks of Aidu Apariment located in
Shanghai for residential use.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a cash consideration
of RMB83,000,000 (equivalent to HK$100,192,000) was
received. A consideration of RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$4,787,000) was received subsequent to the end of the
reporting period. According to the ferms of the sale and purchase
agreement, the remaining consideration of RMB500,000
[equivalent to HK$598,000) will be settled in December 2016.
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a] Disposal of Hiat Investment (Contd)

Nef assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables
Deferred tax liabilities
Loan from the Group

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
Loan from the Group assigned
loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Other receivables

Total consideration

—E-RE

2016

Hist FET
Notes HK$000

13 43
14 134,812
153

63

(132)

(3)

29 (13,456)
(23,495)

97,985

(13,898)
23,495
(2,005)

105,577

100,192
5,385

105,577
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(e

(6]

Disposal of Hiat Investment (Contd

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the Hiat Investment Disposal during the year ended 31
March 2016 is as follows:

ZE-RE

2016

FET

HK$'000

Cash consideration 100,192

Cash and bank balances disposed of (63)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the Hiat Investment Disposal

100,129

Disposal of Shanghai China Garden

On 17 November 2015, the Group and an independent
third party (the “Shanghai China Garden Purchaser”), enfered
info a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Shanghai China Garden Purchaser acquired the entire equity
interest in Shanghai China Garden at a consideration of
RMB318,527,000 (equivalent to HK$375,767,000) [the
"Shanghai China Garden Disposal’]. The Shanghai China
1 February 2016. Shanghai
China Garden was principally engaged in property leasing

Garden Disposal was completed on

and management business in Shanghai and was the registered
owner of the residential properties known as “China Garden” in

Shanghai.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, a cash consideration
of RMB141,750,000 (equivalent to HK$164,218,000) was
received. A consideration of RMB145,877,000 [equivalent to
HK$174,571,000) was received subsequent to the end of the
reporting period. According to
agreement, the remaining consideration of RMB30,900,000
(equivalent to HK$36,978,000) will be seftled within five
business days after the Group provides the Shanghai China

the terms of the sale and purchase

Garden Purchaser with a copy of the documentary evidence
showing that the Group has paid the fax and duty fo the PRC
authority in respect of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal.
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(6]  Disposal of Shanghai China Garden (Contd)

Nef assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Inventories
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables, deposits received and
receipt in advance
Deferred fax liabilities

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Other receivables

Total consideration

—E-RE

2016

Hist FET
Notes HK$000

13 48
14 353,910
9

95

14,265

(3,137)

(7,045)
29 (74,606)

283,539

(22,629)
114,857

375,767

164,218
211,549

375,767
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39. HEMBEAR (&) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
(b) HELEEEE) (b)  Disposal of Shanghai China Garden (Contd)
BE_Z-X"¥=A=t+—HLt An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
FE - PEERHEZRERE respect of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal during the year
RBREBEFRAZDTIT ended 31 March 2016 is as follows:
ZE-RE
2016
FET
HK$000
HeRE Cash consideration 164,218
BEHER S RRITAR Cash and bank balances disposed of (14,265)
LBEERECRER Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect
ZRRSBEEFRA of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal 149,953
ERLEBERNECE—TH Further details of the Shanghai China Garden Disposal were
B #RARARHAR=2—1 disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 17 November

Ft—AttHzZRE - 2015.
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39. HEMBEAR (&) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(c) HiE Tremend Yield Limited (c] Disposal of Tremend Yield Limifted
RZZE—ONF+=-A+—H ' & On 11 December 2014, TPDIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
ATZEQWE@ AR AU ER] Company, entered info a disposal agreement to dispose of all
V-BEHERE  MSLTELE of its equity interest in Tremend Yield Limited and the rights and
H M Tremend Yield Limited 2 & benefits in the inferestfree shareholder's loan of HK$6,404,000
#B P # K Tremend Yield Limited owing by Tremend Yield Limited to TPDIL, at a cash consideration
ERFAMEZEREBRRER of HK$21,875,000, to Mr. Fung (the “Tremend Yield Disposal”).
6,404,0007 7T 2 #E M K M & - The Tremend Yield Disposal was completed on 19 December
R & 8 /21,875,000% T 2014. Tremend Yield Limited was a property investment company
([Tremend Yield tH%& 1) © Tremend whose main asset was a shop in Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon for
Yied HER ZFE—-—HE+ = commercial use.

A+ 1B 5 &K ° Tremend Yield
limted Z— Y EKRE T £
TEBEEANNNERNABES

Ei}e L

—T-1F
2015
Wit FET
Notes HK$ 000

HEZEERE Net assefs disposed of:
REMZ Investment property 14 22,530
Hka Deposits 1
RITHETF Bank balances 279
FEET IR Accruals (24)
HipEMNFIEREWET & Other payables and deposits received (167)
FERBIR Tax payable (93)
ERETIEER Deferred tax liability 29 [560)
REFEEZEHK loan from the Group (6,404)
15,562
BEZRELREEZER Loan from the Group assigned 6,404
HE—FENBRRZER Loss on disposal of a subsidiary Q1)
21,875
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(c)  Disposal of Tremend Yield Limited (Contd]

—T-REF
2015
FET
HK$000
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration 21,875

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the Tremend Yield Disposal during the year ended 31
March 2015 is as follows:

—ZT-hF

2015

T/ET

HK$'000

Cash consideration 21,875

Bank balances disposed of (279)
ef inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect

of the Tremend Yield Disposal 21,596

Further details of the Tremend Yield Disposal were disclosed in
the Company's announcement dated 11 December 2014

(d)  Disposal of Tysan Engineering Company Limited

On 11 December 2014, Tysan Construction Company Limited
("TCCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a disposal agreement to dispose of all of its equity inferest in
Tysan Engineering Company limited (“TECL’) and the rights and
benefits in the interestfree shareholder’s loan of HK$6,433,000
owing by TECL to TCCL, at a cash consideration of
HK$5,794,000, to Mr. Fung (the “Tysan Engineering Disposal’).
The Tysan Engineering Disposal was completed on 19 December
2014. TECL and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of E&M engineering services. Immediately affer
the completion of the Tysan Engineering Disposal, TECL, which
is confrolled by Mr. Fung, became a related company of the
Group.

F% 2015/2016 173



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —Z—X"F=A=+—H

39. HEMBAR(E) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(d) HERFEZEERLA(E) (d) Disposal of Tysan Engineering Company Limited (Cont'd)
—Z—h%F
2015
FET
HK$ 000
BHEEERE Net assefs disposed of:
REEBEHNTIRZRAR Amounts due from customers for contract works 6,857
FEWE 5 8RN Trade receivables 4,619
BRI - 7] REMEWTIE  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 90
RITETT Bank balances 1,534
T E SR R FERTHUIR Trade payables and accruals (2,514)
H fth 5008 Other payables (162)
REFEBENIR A Amounts due to customers for contract works (748)
I ERITEE Interestbearing bank borrowing (400)
REAEEZER loan from the Group (6,433)
RE NI IEERAR R 2 B Loan from a non-controlling shareholder (2,757)
FEIERR AR R A R Non-controlling interests (26)
60
EEFREAREEZEH Loan from the Group assigned 6,433
HEMBARZER loss on disposal of subsidiaries (699)
5,794
TSR HZA - Satisfied by:
BeRE Cash consideration 5,794

174  ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016



[ ]
R B AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —ZE—X"F=A=+—H

39. HEMBEAR (&) 39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
(d) HEHZFEZEEFRLA(E) (d)  Disposal of Tysan Engineering Company Limited (Contd)
BE_ZT—RF=-A=1T—HILHF An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
B RAIRBRBHEZHE K respect of the Tysan Engineering Disposal during the year ended
FRBLEBFRAZONWT 31 March 2015 is as follows:
i =
2015
TET
HK$ 000
HeRE Cash consideration 5,794
BHERITER Bank balances disposed of (1,534)
FAIRRBLEZHER Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
ZRRSBEEFRA in respect of the Tysan Engineering Disposal 4,260
EREATREREEEZE—F Further details of the Tysan Engineering Disposal were disclosed
FE BERARABAHR-TE in the Company's announcement dated 11 December 2014.

—ME+-—At+—BziEe
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40. REHE D 2EMITA 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RBEHR  SHEERTIAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
D as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
SEEE Financial assets
E0E “F-0f
2016 2015
RATHE
AR
tREE-
KFRE
Financicl
assels  AMHHE AiE
otfoirvale  SRERE THEE
6 through ~~ Availoble- E¥R  Awloble
BUGE  profitor forsale BlGR forsale
loonsand ~ loss-held ~finoncial @  loonsond  finonciol et
receivables  for trading assels Tolal  receivables asses Tolal

Fiér FEr FiEr TiEn TAT TET TET
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  AKSO0  AKSOOD  AKSO00

A ERE Availableforsale investment - - 1,197 1,197 = 1249 1,249
fTEERIA Derivative financil instrument - 8,533 - 8,533 = = =
EUE S5 RERRES  Tode ond refention receivables 727,243 - - 70243 1016641 - 1,016,641
HihENER Other receivables 231977 - - 1977 19,941 = 19,941
THER Time deposits 1,303,589 - - 1303589 746432 - 746432
XBsRE Resticted cash - - - - 24,000 - 24,000
ReREOER Cash ond bank balances 502,830 - - 502830 541,004 - 541,004

2,765,639 8,533 1197 2775369 2,348,078 1249 2,349,327
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd)

Financial liabilities
—E-RE ZE—AF
2016 2015
BESEAA REHEAAKR
1) 5a 1l -
TRAE TRAE
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised  at amortised
cost cost
FET THET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Trade and retention payables 385,134 484,494
Other payables 21,325 10,625
Interestbearing bank borrowings 856,946 367,899
1,263,405 863,018
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4. ERMTREZRAFESREE 41. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AEEE-FAFMAGETRZE The Group entered info a derivative financial instrument with a financial
MBI BTSSR TIA - %014 institution with an AAA credit rating. The derivative financial insfrument
TRIEAARNERES - RRARER which is a cross currency swap, was measured using valuation
8% BB E RN 2 G techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using present
ERITETE - ZFRABAZEAM G value calculations. The model incorporates various market observable
BRWAYE  BREDEHERNE inputs including the expected forward rate or price, volatility and interest
18 RBE RN R AR - INEK IR rafe curves. The carrying amount of the cross currency swap is the same
ZEREERE A FEMR - as its fair value.

Tﬁ'inéﬁﬁﬂﬁg EerITAZATE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
ATEEMARE Group's financial insfruments:
RIBE-ARERZZE-AFZA=1- Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2016 and 2015:

ARATEI AR |

“E0E il
2016 2015
AFEEER RTEERR
Fair value measurement using Fair value measurement using
i N EN i EA £
e 6% TUEE [k gE  AIER
(#18) B AEE BARE (£1B) BAE BAYE
Quoled  ($2B)  (%3B) Quoied  (£2B)  (£3E)
price  Significant  Significant pice  Signficant  Significant
inacfive  observable - unobservable inaclive  observable  undbsenvable
markefs inputs inpufs B mates inpus inpus ot
level 1) (level2)  (level 3] Toll  flevel 1] flevel2)  [level 3) Totdl

Fér TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TET  TEr TER
HK$000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS 00D

fTEERIE Derivative financial instument - 8,533 - 8,533 = = = =
RZZE-—RF=ZA=+—0 " 5B The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
EAMEAFETezeBAaE (= as at 31 March 2016 (2015: Nil).

—hE )

FR - FIERF2E AL EFEFA During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
FEFHESR TESREENER between level 1 and level 2 and no fransfers info or out of Level 3 for
BEEBEASELEIE(ZE—RF: both financial assets and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

&) o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, time deposits, trade and refention and other receivables,
frade and refention and other payables and bank borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to these
financial statements. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
fo ensure that appropriate measures are implemented in a fimely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and bank balances,
fime deposits, and frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances and time deposits is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high creditratings assigned by
international creditrating agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily atfributable fo its frade and refention
and other receivables. The management of the Group monitors each
individual frade debt on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo
bad debs is not significant. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, with the exposure spreading over a large number of
counterparties and customers. Further quantitative dafa in respect of the
Group's exposure to credif risk arising from frade and refention and
other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22 fo the financial
statements.
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Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
fo ifs interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings af variable rates
expose the Group fo interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an inferest rate hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors the Group's interest rate exposure and considers
enfering info interest rate swaps fo reduce its exposure fo interest rate
fluctuations should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held consfant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rafe
borrowings| and the Group's equity [before any impact on tax).

BRBLA %R
&,/ i)
FIZE Increase/
Increase (decrease)  REZFA *
in interest in profit Decrease
rate  before tax in equity*
TET TIET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
100 @& 2 (8,585) -
100
basis points
1001EE 2, (3,686 -
100
basis points

*

Excluding refained profits

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of its transactions sefiled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
the current year, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.
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42. BBEREEBFERBEK(E) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

BB LA Liquidity risk
AEEZARREAMBARTEEER The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
BREDEHEEE M2 BRFTE - K of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
SETHRAEEIZESION - BRA Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
RSB E R E M 5 EIE o adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.
BIBEATARBIRRN - ATEIIARE The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
BRRESRAZERAERHA the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:
ZE-RF
2016
1218 A AR 1255 SENE
REREE Less than o5 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

FET FEn FiEr FEn FEn
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ERESEFNREMNRES  Trade and refenfion payables - 385,134 - - 385,134
Eft IR Other payables - 21,325 - - 21,325
ST e > Interestbearing bank
borrowings* 6,100 193,274 599,410 59,669 858,453
AEORBEMMBAR Guarantees in respect
{2 iR of performance bonds
in relation 1o subsidiaries 195,469 - - - 195,469

201,569 599,733 599,410 59,669 1,460,381
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42. MBEBEEEERBEKE) 42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

MEELTERE ()

EffEFEHRENRES
Eft AR
fit SR TfEE >

REOREEAMEAT
frihi 2 iR

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

—E-nfF
2015
12{RAR 1555 SENE
RRREE less thon T105 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

Trade and refenfion payables = 484,494 = - 484,494
Other payables = 10,625 5 = 10,625
Inferestbearing bank

borrowings* 33,940 109,823 161,110 63,737 368,610

Guarantees in respect
of performance bonds
in relation fo subsidiaries 416,775 = = = 416,775

450,715 604,942 161,110 63,737 1,280,504

H R-ZFE—RER-_ZE—FRF=H * Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of
=t+—B WERTEEeEIAR HK$6,100,000 and HK$33,940,000 as at 31 March 2016 and
BRIB IS T E A E (&R 2015, respectively, which contain a repayment on demand clause
PR B ERER 2 RITERDRA giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time and
6,100,000 7% 7t % 33,940,000 7T - therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
Hit, - LB BRI E - Z5e classified as on demand.

BEDPREERENEE -
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BB AR (&)

BERA LRRERERE  EES
HEAERTETHIER 12EARNEH
S BREABZEFRTETRERR
REGEREIMEER - RIEHFR
HEREZRETIIRE  AEERY R
REREZBZMBRR AREETE
RRHL BN TEENSZHRAKES
E—RERREER - RRFITER 2 &
FRZB-RE=ZA=1t—RH " I
FHR12MEAARER 197,114,000
B T(Z T — 1% :137,663,000%8
) R—EL5(BRERMF)E
601,670,000 T(ZE — A F:
167,210,000/ 7T) + ARRAFIA L
JE& 59,669,000 T(Z T —HF -
63,737,000 7T)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the
directors do not believe that the bank loans will be called in their
entirety within 12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will
be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
respective agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the
financial position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of
events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of bank
loans, the maturity ferms at 31 March 2016 are HK$197,114,000
(2015: HK$137,663,000) payable in less than 12 months;
HK$601,670,000 (2015: HK$167,210,000) payable in one to
five years, inclusive; and HK$59,669,000 (2015: HK$63,737,000)

payable over five years.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are fo
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order o support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages ifs capital structure and makes adjustments fo
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 31
March 2015.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not more than 50%. Net debt includes frade
and refention payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes fotal equity
of the Group. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

—E-RE —ZE—AF

2016 2015

FET THT

HK$'000 HK$ 000

ENESRSNEMNRES Trade and retention payables 385,134 484,494
H fth e 5008 Other payables 21,325 10,625
M ERITREE Interestbearing bank borrowings 856,946 367,899
B EHITERR less: Time deposits (1,303,589)  (746,432)
XRHHE Restricted cash - (24,000

B RIRTTET Cash and bank balances (502,830)  (541,064]
Be%s Nef cash (543,014) (448,478
o Total equity 2,777,192 2,932,569
EUNERET RS Gearing rafio N/ATER N/ANEA
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HNA Finance | Co., Ltd. /&
AKREEZITRE#66%
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Finance | Co., Ud.BEA E M B
ZE-AFHEAT A HNA
Finance | Co., lid. AR &) 2 #2
F& A% 3R Tides Holdings Il Lid. 7] 32
E B & - 1R Ut - HNA Finance
| Co., ld. BiEHHRAEEE R
Tides Holdings Il Lid. 5 fé 4 3t /&)
BEHE577,279, 496 % % 15 (48
ERAQRIREIZEEH=B S
REZETRMHL66%) - BRER
B #) 520615076000 (48
ERE R453% T )([Tides R
51)

Tides X 5 72 E + HNA Finance |
Co., Ud. B BARREEITRG
#166% » Tides Holdings Il Ltd. #
BRNARRIEEITRN A% F
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ARREREBDTEERASE
DR ERERN IR SRR E o
ERREFEEP —HERE
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RN EIP R R B 2 R BNRS
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SRZREHE 2 EE TN
ERARRIBELSGZ BER
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REERE o

R B AR A

W % it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2016 —ZE—X"F=A=+—H

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a] Acquisition of approximately 66% of issued shares of

the Company by HNA Finance I Co., Ltd.

Pursuant fo the Joint Announcement, the Company and HNA
Finance | Co., lid. jointly announced that, on 19 April 2016,
HNA Finance | Co., lid. and Tides Holdings Il ld., the
Company's confrolling shareholder, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement pursuant fo which, HNA Finance | Co., lid.
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and Tides Holdings Il Lid.
has conditionally agreed to sell, 577,279,496 shares, which
represent approximately 66% of issued shares of the Company
as af the date of entering info the sale and purchase agreement,
for an aggregate cash consideration of approximately
HK$2,615,076,000 (representing HK$4.53 per share) (the
"Tides Transaction”).

Upon completion of the Tides Transaction, HNA Finance | Co.,
ltd. will hold approximately 66% of the issued shares of the
Company and Tides Holdings Il Lid. will remain inferested in
approximately 9% of the issued shares of the Company, and
HNA Finance | Co., ltd. will become the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

The Company has adopfed an incentive scheme in favour of ifs
executive directors and the Group's senior management. A term
of this incentive scheme is that in the event there is change in
control of the Company, unvested rights in this incentive scheme
will vest immediately and no further grants will be made but an
aggregate payment equal to 4.5% of the value of the Company
will be made to participants in that incentive scheme. The
completion of the Tides Transaction will trigger an aggregate
payment of approximately HK$ 197,980,000 under the incentive
scheme which will be determined at the completion date of the
Tides Transaction.

Further details of the Tides Transaction were disclosed in the Joint
Announcement.
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont'd)

(b)  Acquisition of a 40% equity interest in Tysan Foundation

(Hong Kong) Limited

On 19 April 2016, the Company, Fortunate Pool and Mr.
Fung entered info a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant fo
which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase and
Fortunate Pool has condifionally agreed fo sell 40% equity inferest
in TFHK, for an aggregate cash consideration of approximately
HK$836,790,000 (the “Foundation Transaction”). Completion
of the Foundation Transaction is conditional upon the completion
of the Tides Transaction, and will take place in two phases
with phase 1 complefion taking place on the same date as the
complefion of the Tides Transaction and phase 2 completion
taking place within one year after that. Immediately after phase 1
completion, the equity interest in TFHK held by the Company will
increase from 60% to 95% and affer phase 2 completion, TFHK
will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Further defails of the Foundation Transaction were disclosed in the
Joint Announcement and the Company's circular dated 23 May
2016. Up fo the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Foundation Transaction has not been completed.
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Amount due from a subsidiary

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Time deposits

Bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Trade payables and accruals

Other payables and deposits received

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY

Accrual
Net assefs

EQUITY
Issued capifal
Reserves [note)

Total equity

“E-RE —T—hF

2016 2015
FET TET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
995,911 1,040,371
78 -

199 138
200,000 —
19,741 9,340
220,013 9,478
= 47,772

3,141 [, 398
229 125

3,370 A0S

216,643 (39,774)
1,212,554 1,000,597
4,387 -
1,208,167 1,000,597

87,466 87,466
1,120,701 913,131

1,208,167 1,000,597
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44, RRBPBARRR(E)

45.

44.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Cont'd)

st - Note:
ARAZ @R T A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
RN RER BB RERF
Share premium  Contributed Retained st
account surplus profits Total
FET FET TFET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
RZE—NFMA—H At 1 April 2014 563,861 29,950 192,281 786,092
REZ 5 Profit for the year = = 258,239 258,239
FAZEN LR Tofal comprehensive
income for the year — — 258,239 258,239
—Z-HFEEK 2014 final dividend
KORAS 2 REARR 2 declared and paid = = (87,467) (87,467)
—E-RFHHRE 2015 interim dividend = = (43,733) (43,733
RZE—RF=A=+—H At 31 March 2015 and
k=Z—AFMA—H 1 April 2015 563,861 29,950 319,320 913,131
REZ 5 Profit for the year — — 513,703 513,703
FAZEN LR Tofal comprehensive
income for the year - — 513,703 513,703
—E-RFEERK 2015 final dividend
R 2 REIR S declared and paid - - (131,200 (131,200
T RFHRERE 2016 interim dividend - — (174,933) (174,933)
BREZHARS Transfer to contributed surplus (563,861) 563,861 - —
RZZE—R"F=A=1+—H8 At 31 March 2016 = 593,811 526,890 1,120,701

ARBHABRBRERAR A B
A RER-AN-—F25EE
AT A M B AR R A FERH
RBARREHITRD CHEZHE
29,950,000/ 7T ° 4 » RIFA R A
R-E-AF\ALRBTZRRBF
ARELBEBZEIARER  ARAR
- N\AEAZEDEERc R
R 28 563,861,000 7T F AT
o W EE 2 ERFIBRAAL
AEARKRE - RE-N/N\—FBARE
REVE - BETERT » KRR AR
BREHDIRGA B o

B Rk 2 R

EXRR-ZF—NFRAZTLALE
BT BB -
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45.

The contributed surplus of the Company included the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor
amounting to HK$29,950,000. In addition, pursuant fo a special
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 7 August 2015, the entire amount of HK$563,861,000 standing
o the credit of share premium account of the Company as af 7 August
2015 was cancelled, and the corresponding balance arising therefrom
was credited fo the contributed surplus account of the Company.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company may make
distributions fo its members out of the contributed surplus under cerfain
circumsfances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 29 June 2016.



FRHEE 2
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

1 Bh

Location

PR ST

Lhelm

FIETRE 1335
RREE

The Waterfront

133 Guangfu Road West,
Putuo District,

Shanghai, PRC

hE A2
Ll

£ 52 FE B BN 22 O
=S

The Riverside

South side of the junction
of Tai Er Zhuang Road and
Qiongzhou Road,

Hexi District,

Tianjin, PRC

R B AR A

F ¥ Y ¥ — ¥ F SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

BEME
Type of
development

B2
Residential

=
Residential

B4
RREEE
Approximate
gross floor
area
(FF2K)
(sg.m)

147,000

75,000

A
Ptz
Group’s
interest

100%

100%

£ 2015/2016
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F ¥ Y ¥ — ¥ F SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

LR ES
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BRMEE
W E Type of
Location development
FEREREST FE/AE
B RENEAE Residential /
RMBERE Commercial

The Pinnacle

Huanghe Nan Avenue,
Huanggu District,
Shenyang City,
Liaoning Province, PRC

ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

i BRI 78
Site area
(FFK)

(sg.m/

41,209

B4
REZHEER
Approximate
gross floor
area
(FHK)
(sq.m/

165,000

rEE
s
Group's
interest

100%

P ER
Stage

ITRERHA
REBinik T
Construction
commenced
and partially

completed
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. CHIU Chin Hung
Mr. LAU Kin Fai

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Tianbing (Chairman)
Mr. Stuart Morrison GRANT

Mr. Justin WA

Mr. LAW Yiu Fat Richard

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. U Kit Chee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. FAN Chor Ho (Chairman)
Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. LI Kit Chee

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. TSE Man Bun (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Tianbing

Mr. FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor
Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. U Kit Chee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. WANG Tianbing (Chairman)
Mr. FAN Chor Ho

Mr. TSE Man Bun

Mr. LUNG Chee Ming, George
Mr. LI Kit Chee

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Miss MO Wai ling

4 2015/2016

191



[ )
H‘ TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

192

A 7 % ¥ CORPORATE INFORMATION

RNEWE
BRI/ ME
A

2K & A B FT
SRR

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
BB e AEmTT
AlE R R = AT

FEAERRIT

RERTT(BE)ARAT
AEBRRITERNTT
EARTARARA]
LBEmERITERAR]
BB LBESRITAERAR
EB/KFRITARRAT

AfMEE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM1 1
Bermuda

BMEENREREEME

B8

=g

BEE2W

One Island South 204

BERMDBFERLDE

SEBREERAR
BB

SFAER 18358
AN 2218

B SR PR ALAD A3
687
A4k

www.tysan.com
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Miss WONG Suk Han, Kitty
AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Szefo & Yeung

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

20th Floor One Island South
No. 2 Heung Yip Road
Wong Chuk Hang

Hong Kong

BRANCH REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG
Tricor Tengis Limited

level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

HKSE STOCK CODE

687

WEBSITE

www.tysan.com
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